

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem 


Mark Bond • Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • Jared Mead • John Steckler 


   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the Acting City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days 
prior to the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and address for the 
official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be at 
the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2018-829 


Next Resolution No. 2018-573 


June 19, 2018 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 


B. Park Mitigation Fund Analysis  


(Peggy Lauerman, Director of Finance)   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 


C. Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Services  


(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)   
D. Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services  







(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


E. Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount of 
$167,598,55 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Bond and Councilmember Todd)   
 


F. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Bond and Councilmember Todd)   
 
REPORTS 
 


G. Mayor/Council  
 


H. City Manager  


• Parks & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of April 4, 2018 


• Council Planning Schedule  
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


I. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential Session of the Council)  
 


J. • Discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)  


• Review the performance of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) 
  


Action may or may not be taken.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 3 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 4 of 98







CONTRACT 2018


CITY OF MILL CREEK
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


[ARCHITECT-ENGINEER SERVICES]


1. Parties


1.1 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the City of
Mill Creek, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, Washington, 98012, a Washington municipal
corporation (the "City") and Bruce Dees & Associates, an LLC organized under the laws of
the state of Washington, located and doing business at 222 E 26th Street Suite 202, Tacoma
Washington, 98421 ("Consultant") (collectively at times referred to as "Parties"), and shall be
effective upon the authorized signatures of both Parties to this Agreement ("Effective Date").


2. Recitals


2.1 The City desires to retain the Consultant to perform certain professional
design services related to the Mill Creek Sports Park Field Improvements (the "Project").


2.2 The City solicited for professional services as required by law, including
RCW Chapter 39.80.


2.3 The Consultant represents it is available and able to provide qualified
personnel and facilities necessary to accomplish the work and services contemplated herein
within the required time and in accordance with the City's requirements and professional
standards.


In consideration ofthQ mutual benefits and promises of this Agreement, the Parties enter
into this Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein.


3. ScQfieofWork


3.1 The City hereby retains the Consultant upon the terms and conditions
contained herein to perform certain work and services on the Project. The work and services


for the Project to be performed by the Consultant are set forth in the Scope of Work,
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Work").


3.2 The City has relied upon the qualifications of the Consultant in entering
into this Agreement. By execution of the Agreement, Consultant represents it possesses the


ability, skill, and resources necessary to perform the Work and is familiar with all applicable
current laws, rules, and regulations that reasonably relate to the Work.


3.3 It shall be the responsibility of the Consultant to gather and become
familiar with all site information, including existing improvements, before starting and
during completion of the Work. The City may make available to the Consultant copies ofas-
built plans, drawings, survey notes, studies, soil reports, maintenance and performance


Page 1 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 5 of 98







records, and other relevant data, and property descriptions of various City facilities related to
the Project, if any, which are readily available and on file at the City. If provided, these
documents are solely for additional information to the Consultant and do not relieve the
Consultant of its duties and obligations under this Agreement nor do they constitute any
representation or warranty by the City as to conditions or other matters related to the Project.


3.4 Consultant shall take all precautions reasonably necessary to perform the
Work and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents and subconsultants in
the performance of the Work.


3.5 Even though Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to
control and direct the performance and details of the Work, the Work must meet the approval
of the City and shall be subject to the City's general right of inspection and supervision to
secure the satisfactory completion of this Agreement.


4. Period of Performance


4.1 Completion Date. Consultant shall commence the Work upon the City's
issuance of the notice to proceed and shall complete all Work no later than December 31,
2018 ("Completion Date"), unless extended or terminated earlier by the City pursuant to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement. The "Period of Performance" is the period of time
between the Effective Date and the Completion Date.


4.2 Project Schedule. The general Project Schedule is set forth in Exhibit B,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Time is of the essence for the
Project.


4.3 Time Extensions. The Total Price, Period of Performance, and task
budgets shall not be increased because of any unwarranted delays or costs attributable to the
Consultant. In the event of a delay not attributable to the Consultant that could not be
reasonably anticipated and results in an increase in costs to perform the Work, the City may
at its discretion, through the execution of an amendment, increase the Total Price, Period of
Performance, and/or task budget.


5. Administration and Supervision


5.1 City. The City Engineer or its designee (who shall be designated in
writing by the City) shall perform day-to-day management of this Agreement. Unless
otherwise indicated in writing by the City Manager or its designee, the City Engineer will
issue notices to proceed, approve all requests for payment, authorize termination or


modification of tasks, and approve in writing changes to the task budgets outlined in the Cost
Summary, Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, provided
that such changes do not impact the Total Price or the Period of Performance. The City
Engineer will also be responsible for determining when the Consultant has satisfactorily
performed all Work and for ensuring that the Consultant complies with all provisions of this
Agreement.


Page 2 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 6 of 98







5.2 Consultant. The Consultant represents that it has, or will obtain, all
personnel necessary to perform the Work and that such personnel shall be qualified,
experienced, and licensed as may be necessary or required by laws and regulations to
perform the Work. All services required under this Agreement shall be performed by the
Consultant, its employees, or by subconsultants whose selection has been authorized by the
City; provided that the City's authorization shall not relieve the Consultant or its
subconsultants from any duties or obligations under this Agreement or at law to perform the
Work in a satisfactory and competent manner. Consultant shall ensure that all contractual
duties, requirements and obligations that the Consultant owes to the City shall also be owed
to the City by the Consultant's subconsultants retained to perform the Work.


5.2.1 Authorized Subconsultants. The Agreement shall identify in the
Key Subconsultant List, Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference, the subconsultants that are authorized to perform Work under this Agreement, or
shall state that there are no subconsultants.


5.2.2 Process for Adding or Removing Key Subconsultants


5.2.2.1 If during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant wishes to
add or remove a key subconsultant as identified in the Key Subconsultant List, the
Consultant shall provide the City Engineer with a written request identifying the proposed
change and obtain written authorization by the City.


5.2.2.2 The City has sole discretion to approve or reject a proposed
change in a key subconsultant. Before any key subconsultant not already identified in the
Agreement can perform any Work, the Consultant must obtain written authorization from the
City.


5.2.3 Process for Adding or Removing Key Personnel


5.2.3.1 If during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant wishes to
add or remove key personnel as identified in the Key Personnel List, Exhibit E, attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, the Consultant shall provide the City
Engineer with a written request identifying the proposed change and obtain written
authorization by the City.


5.2.3.2 The City has sole discretion to approve or reject a proposed
change in any key personnel. Before any key personnel not already identified in the
Agreement can perform any Work, the Consultant must obtain written authorization from the
City.


5.2.3.3 If a change is made substituting or changing assigned key
personnel or subconsultants, the Consultant shall pay any and all costs associated therewith,
including "Transfer of Knowledge and Information." Transfer of Knowledge and
Information shall include all time, labor hours, and costs for reviewing Project
documentation, participating in meetings with Project personnel, and participating in site
visits to familiarize the person or subconsultant with the Project, the Work, and the Project
location(s).


Page 3 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 7 of 98







5.2.4 City May Request Removal of Subconsultant or Personnel. The


Consultant shall remove from the Project any personnel or subconsultant, including key
personnel or key subconsultants if, after the matter has been duly considered by the City and
the Consultant, the City considers such removal appropriate or necessary and in the best
interests of the Project and so advises the Consultant in writing.


5.3 Nondiscrimination. In all hiring or employment decisions arising from
this Agreement, there shall be no unlawful discrimination against any employee or applicant


for employment because of sex, age, race, color, creed, national origin, marital status, sexual


orientation, political ideology, veteran or military status, genetic information, family medical
history, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap, unless based upon a


bona fide occupational qualification. This requirement shall apply to, but not be limited to,
the following: employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. No person shall be
denied or subjected to discrimination in receipt of the benefit of any services or activities
made possible by or resulting from this Agreement because of any of the protected
characteristics identified above.


6. Changes in Work


6.1 The City may at any time direct the Consultant to make additions within
the general scope of the Work, delete portions of the Project, or revise portions of the Work.
Any direction from the City that results in an increase or decrease in the Scope of Work or
Project Schedule, changes the Total Price or Period of Performance, or changes affecting the
Scope of Work and Total Price for the Project shall be made only by an amendment to this
Agreement prior to the work being performed. Subject to Section 6.2 below, the City
Manager is the only authorized City representative who may sign such amendments.


6.2 Changes described in Section 6.1 above may be made in writing by the
City Engineer if such changes individually, and cumulatively as to all such changes for the
Project, do not increase the Total Price specified in Section 10.1.


6.3 In the event the Consultant identifies something that may materially
impact the Scope of Work, Project Schedule, and/or Total Price, Consultant shall
immediately inform the City Engineer.


7. Responsibility of the Consultant


7.1 Standard of Care


7.1.1 The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality,
technical adequacy and accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of the Work and all
plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services prepared or performed


pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall perform the Work and complete the
Project so that it conforms to the highest professional standards. The Consultant shall be
responsible for the professional standards, performance, and actions of all persons and firms


performing the Work. The Consultant shall, without additional compensation, correct or
revise any errors, omissions, or specific breaches of a contractual obligation in the Work or


Page 4 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 8 of 98







any plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services performed under this


Agreement.


7.1.2 The City's acceptance of any portion of the Work, or any plans,
drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and other products of the professional services
rendered hereunder shall not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the
adequacy and accuracy thereof. The City's review, approval, acceptance of, or payment for


all or any of the Work, shall not be construed nor shall it operate as a waiver of any rights
under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this
Agreement.


7.1.3 The Consultant shall be knowledgeable and familiar with the
current edition of the City's Contract Documents (available from the City), and the current
edition of WSDOT Standard Specifications for Roads, Bridges and Municipal Construction.
All technical specifications drafted by the Consultant shall be consistent with these
documents and shall not create any conflict therewith.


7.1.4 The Consultant shall promptly bring to the City's attention all
concerns that the Consultant has regarding the Work, design or any finding, conclusions, or
final decisions made by the City. The Consultant shall, at the City's request, provide the City
with a written evaluation of its concerns, along with proposed solutions to any identified
problems.


7.2 Maintenance of Project Documentation


7.2.1 Upon request by the City Engineer, the Consultant shall provide
the City with access to all documents and correspondence, including e-mail communications,


memoranda, computer files, and all other materials prepared or used in performance of the


Work.


7.2.2 The Consultant acknowledges that information and documentation
submitted to the City will in all likelihood be considered a public record in accordance with
the Revised Code of Washington and may not be exempt from disclosure under the
Washington State Public Records Act.


7.2.3 The Consultant acknowledges that unauthorized disclosure of
information or documentation concerning this Project may cause substantial economic loss or
harm to the City. Except as otherwise required by court order or subpoena, the Consultant
shall not without prior written authorization by the City Engineer allow the release,
dissemination, distribution, sharing, copying, or other publication or disclosure of
information or documentation obtained, discovered, shared or produced pursuant to this
Agreement.


8. Commencement and Monthly Reports


8.1 Notice to Proceed. After execution of this Agreement by the City and the
Consultant, the City will issue a written notice to proceed on the Project and may issue
written notice(s) to proceed on specific tasks thereof if necessary to produce specified work


Page 5 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 9 of 98







products. Upon receipt of a notice to proceed, the Consultant shall promptly commence
work.


8.2 Monthly Reports. Unless otherwise stated in the Scope of Work, the
Consultant shall submit to the City Engineer with each invoice a monthly report in a format
approved by the City Engineer sufficient to show the activities completed and the Project
progress as measured against the Project Schedule and Cost Summary. At a minimum the
monthly report shall identify work completed, costs incurred, budget status (budget vs.
estimated balance to complete), amendments, project schedule, any variance between
planned vs. actual Project performance, all issues that may result in completion of any task
beyond the established schedule or task budget, and all issues that may result in an increase
in Total Price.


9. Compensation


9.1 The City will pay the Consultant for authorized and satisfactorily completed
Work in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Consultant shall be paid on the basis
of time actually expended and out-of-pocket expenses in accordance with the work hours and
the rate(s) and for all supervision, labor, supplies, materials, equipment or use thereof, taxes,


and for all other necessary incidentals all as specified in the Cost Summary. In no event,
however, shall the total cumulative payment(s) paid by the City exceed the sum of sixty one
thousand six hundred and thirty seven dollars and seventy five cents ($61,637.75), including
applicable state taxes ("Total Price"). The Total Price is the maximum amount to be paid
under this Agreement and shall not be exceeded without prior written authorization from. the
City in the form of a negotiated and executed amendment.


9.2 Invoice Process. The Consultant shall submit to the City Engineer an invoice for
payment for Work once per month. The invoice shall identify the Work completed since the
previous invoice, and shall be computed pursuant to this Agreement. The invoice may be
combined with the monthly report specified in Section 9.2.


9.2.1 Invoice Details. Invoices shall detail the Work by task, hours, and
employee name and level for which payment is being requested; include copies of all
invoices from authorized subconsultants and suppliers for which payment is being requested;
and shall itemize, and include copies of, receipts and invoices for all other direct costs.


9.2.2 Maximum Amount. At no time shall the total cumulative amounts
paid for the Work (calculated as a percentage of the Total Price) exceed the Total Price or the
amount that would be due based on the percentage of the Work satisfactorily completed as
determined by the City.


9.2.3 Payment. Upon acceptance by the City of the invoiced Work,
which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld. Consultant shall be compensated in
accordance with the City's usual procedures. In the event of a disputed invoice, the City may
pay the undisputed amounts and withhold from payment the disputed portion of the invoice.


Page 6 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 10 of 98







9.3 Final Payment. Final payment to the Consultant for the Work will be made in
accordance with the City's usual procedures after all of the following are verified by the City
Engineer:


9.3.1 Satisfactory completion of all of the Work;


9.3.2 Receipt by the City of the plans, studies, surveys, photographs,
maps, calculations, notes, reports, warranties and all other documents and/or deliverables


which are required to be prepared and submitted by the Consultant;


9.3.3 Delivery of all equipment and/or materials purchased specifically
for the Project where the City has reimbursed the Consultant for such costs.


9.4 Release. Acceptance of any payment by Consultant shall constitute a release of
all payment claims against City arising under this Agreement as to such portion of the
Services. No payment to the Consultant, whether periodic or final, shall constitute a waiver
or release by the City of any claim, right or remedy it may have against the Consultant
regarding performance of the Work as required by this Agreement.


10. Termination of Agreement


10.1 Termination for Default


10.1.1 The City may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part and at
any time, in writing if the Consultant substantially fails to fulfill any or all of its material
obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the City.


10.1.2 If the City terminates all or part of this Agreement for default, the
City shall determine the amount of work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination
and the amount owing to the Consultant using the criteria set forth below; provided, that (a)
no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on unperformed Work and (b) any payment
due to the Consultant at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any
additional costs the City incurs or will incur because of the Consultant's default. In such
event, the City shall consider the actual costs incurred by the Consultant in performing the
Work to the date of termination, the amount of Work originally required which was
satisfactorily completed to the date of termination, whether that Work is in a form or of a
type which is usable and suitable to the City at the date of termination, the cost to the City of
completing the Work itself or of employing another firm to complete it and the
inconvenience and time which may be required to do so, and other factors which affect the
value to the City of the Work performed to the date of termination. Under no circumstances
shall payments made under this provision exceed the Total Price set forth in this Agreement.
This provision shall not preclude the City from filing claims and/or commencing litigation
to secure compensation for damages incurred beyond that covered by withheld payments.


10.1.3 If a termination for default by the City is ultimately determined to
be wrongful, it shall be deemed a termination for convenience, and not a breach of this
Agreement.


Page 7 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 11 of 98







10.2 Termination for Convenience


10.2.1 The City may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part and at
any time, in writing for the convenience of the City.


10.2.2 If the City terminates this Contract for convenience, the City shall
pay the Consultant the amount otherwise due in accordance with this Agreement for services
satisfactorily performed to the date of termination. Under no circumstances shall payments
made under this provision exceed the Total Price set forth in this Agreement.


10.3 Consultants Duties Upon Termination


10.3.1 Upon receipt of a termination notice, whether by default or for
convenience, the Consultant shall at no additional cost to the City:


10.3.1.1 Promptly discontinue all Work affected (unless the notice
directs otherwise);


10.3.1.2 Terminate all contracts with subconsultants to the extent


they relate to the Work terminated; and


10.3.1.3 No later than fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of
termination, promptly deliver or otherwise make available to the City all data, drawings,
electronic drawing files, specifications, calculations, reports, estimates, summaries, and other


Project documentation, such other information and materials as the Consultant or
subconsultants may have accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or
in progress and all equipment/materials purchased specifically for the Project where the City
has paid the Consultant for such items.


10.3.1.4 Take any action necessary, or that the City may reasonably


direct, for the protection and preservation of property or Work related to this Agreement that
is in the possession of the Consultant and in which the City has or may acquire an interest.


11. Ownership and Use of Documents


11.1 All documents, drawings, specifications, designs, computer programs,


software, reports and other work product (collectively referred to as "Work Product")
developed or produced by Consultant for the City in connection with the Work rendered
under this Agreement shall be owned by the City. Consultant shall provide such Work
Product to the City on a data disk compatible with the City's computer equipment and
programs. As between the Consultant and the City, the Work Product shall be works made
for hire under all applicable copyright law and the City shall own any and all copyrights to
such Work Product. Consultant agrees to transfer and assign all ownership rights and
copyrights to such Work Product to the City to give effect to this Section. Consultant further
waives any and all moral rights (including rights of integrity and attribution) in and to the
Work Product. Re-use of any Work Product by the City for other than the Project that is the
subject of this Agreement or modification in use by the City of any of the Work Product
without the Consultant's prior written approval shall be at the City's sole risk.


Page 8 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 12 of 98







11.2 To the extent it is determined any other records held by the
Consultant relating to the Services are subject to the Washington Public Records Act
(RCW 42.56), the Consultant shall promptly deliver such records to the City for
purpose of responding to a public records request. This section shall survive


termination of this agreement.


12. Third-Party Claims and Disputes


12.1 At the City's request, Consultant will assist the City in review and
evaluation of claims and disputes, preparing information for the City's legal counsel,
providing services as witness in litigation or arbitration to which the City is a party, and
providing other services in connection with actual or potential claims or disputes arising out
of the Work, regardless of whether or not consultant is named in such legal action. The
Parties shall cooperate to agree on the compensation for such services. If Consultant is
determined to be responsible for the claim, dispute or litigation due to its act, omission,
negligence or breach of this Agreement, it shall remit back to the City the amounts paid
under this Section to the extent of such act, omission, negligence or breach.


13. Audit and Access to Records


13.1 The Consultant, including its subconsultants, shall maintain books,
records, documents, and other evidence directly pertinent to performance of the Work in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices consistently applied.
The City, or any of its duly authorized representatives, shall, for the purpose of audit and
examination, have access to and be permitted to inspect such books, records, documents, and


other evidence for inspection, audit, and copying for a period of six years after completion of
the Project. The City shall also have access to such books, overhead data, records and
documents during the performance of the Work if deemed necessary by the City to verify
work performed and invoices, to assist in negotiations for amendments to the Agreement or


modifications to tasks, and to resolve claims and disputes.


13.2 Audits conducted under this Section shall be in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and established procedures and guidelines of the reviewing or


auditing agency.


13.3 Consultant shall provide the City, six years after completion of the Project,
all original books, records, documents, and other evidence directly pertinent to performance
of the Work.


14. Leeal Relations


14.1 The Consultant shall comply, and shall ensure its subconsultants comply,
with all the terms of this Agreement and the City resolutions and federal, state and local laws,
regulations and ordinances applicable to the Work to be performed under this Agreement.


14.2 In performing the Work, the Consultant and its subconsultants, employees,
agents and representatives shall be acting as independent contractors and shall not be deemed


Page 9 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 13 of 98







or construed to be employees or agents of the City in any manner whatsoever. The


Consultant shall not hold itself out as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of the City by
reason hereof and will not make any claim, demand, or application to or for any right or
privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the City. The Consultant shall be solely
responsible for any claims/costs and/or losses arising from the Consultant's failure to pay
wages, compensation, benefits, or taxes and/or pay for services, supplies, and/or


materials provided by Consultant employees, agents and representatives, including
subconsultants, and will protect, defend, indemnify and hold the City harmless therefrom.


14.3 The City's rights and remedies in this Agreement are in addition to any
other rights and remedies provided by law. The City may exercise such rights and remedies
in any order and at any time as it determines necessary or appropriate.


15. Indemnification and Insurance


15.1 Indemnification.


15.1.1 Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers ("Indemnified Parties") from and against all
claims, damages, losses, and expenses, asserted against one or more Indemnified Parties


arising out of or resulting from the Consultant's performance of the Work or any obligation
under this Agreement, to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the
Consultant, its subconsultants, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for
whose acts they may be liable ("Indemnified Claim"), regardless of whether or not such
claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by the Indemnified Parties. Such obligation
shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity
which would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section. Where an
Indemnified Claim is caused by or results from the concurrent negligence of the Indemnified
Parties and the Consultant, the Consultant's duty to indemnify and defend the Indemnified
Parties as provided for herein shall apply only to the extent of the negligence of the
Consultant or its subcontractors, consultants or other parties for whom the Consultant is
responsible.


15.1.2 Consultant's obligations under this Section include, but are not
limited to, all claims against the Indemnified Parties by an employee or former employee of
the Consultant or any of its subcontractors. For this purpose, the Consultant expressly
waives, as respects to the Indemnified Parties only, all immunity and limitation on liability
under any Industrial Insurance Act, including Title 51 RCW, or other worker's compensation
act, disability act, or other employee benefit act of any jurisdiction, which would otherwise
be applicable in the case of such a claim.


BY SIGNING THE AGREEMENT THE OWNER AND CONSULTANT CERTIFY
THE WAIVER OF IMMUNITY SPECIFIED BY THIS PROVISION WAS
MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED.


15.1.3 Consultant's obligations under this Section shall survive expiration
or termination of the Agreement. In the event of litigation between the parties to enforce the


Page 10 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 14 of 98







rights under this Section, reasonable attorney fees and costs shall be awarded to the
prevailing party.


15.2 Insurance.


15.2.1 Insurance. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the
duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder
by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.


15.2.2 No Limitation. Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required


by the agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage
provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any remedy available at
law or in equity.


15.2.3 Minimum Scope of Insurance. Consultant shall obtain insurance
of the types described below:


1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired
and leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services


Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent
liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to
provide contractual liability coverage. The City shall be named as an
additional insured under the Consultant's Automobile Liability


insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the City.


2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from


premises, operations, independent contractors and personal injury and


advertising injury. The City shall be named as an additional insured
under the Consultant's Commercial General Liability insurance policy
with respect to the work performed for the City.


3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial
Insurance laws of the state of Washington.


4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's
profession.


15.2.4 Minimum Amounts of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain the
following insurance limits:


1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit
for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.


2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no


less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.


Page 11 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 15 of 98







3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less


than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.


15.2.5 Other Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies are to contain,


or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, Professional
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance:


1. The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with


respect to the City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool


coverage maintained by the City shall be in excess of the Consultant's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.


2. The Consultant's insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage


shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days
prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been
given to the City. In the event that such endorsement cannot be
obtained from Consultant's insurance carrier, Consultant shall be
responsible for providing notice in accordance with the terms of this


provision.


15.2.6 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII.


15.2.7 Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish the City with
original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance
requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work, which is attached and
incorporated by this reference as Exhibit F.


15.2.8 Failure to Maintain Insurance. Failure on the part of the
Consultant to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of
contract, upon which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Consultant
to correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or


renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums


so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset
against funds due the Consultant from the City.


16. Disputes and Remedies


16.1 Choice of Law. This Agreement and all provisions hereof shall be
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington in effect on the Effective
Date.


16.2 City Manager Review. All claims, counter-claims, disputes, and other


matters in question between the City and the Consultant arising out of or relating to this
Agreement shall be referred to the City Manager or a designee for determination, together
with all facts, data, contentions, and so forth which relate thereto. The City Mtanager shall
make a determination within thirty (30) calendar days of such referral.


Page 12 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 16 of 98







16.3 Alternate Dispute Resolution. Should the claim, counter-claims, or


disputes not be resolved by the City Manager's decision, the parties shall attempt to resolve
the matter through professional mediation, which shall be conducted within thirty (30)
calendar days of the City Manager's decision. The cost of mediation shall be shared


equally.


16.4 Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies. Referral to and determination by
the City Manager or a designee and ADR shall be a condition precedent to the
commencement of a civil action to adjudicate such dispute.


16.5 Jurisdiction & Venue The Superior Court of Snohomish County,
Washington, shall have exclusive jurisdiction and venue over any legal action arising under
this Agreement and the laws of the state of Washington shall apply.


17. Notice


17.1 Any notice required to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be
in writing and directed to the party at the address set forth below. Notice shall be considered
issued and effective upon receipt thereof by the addressee-party. Facsimile notice shall be
considered effective with proof of confirmation that the addressee has received the facsimile.
Such proof would be a confirmation sheet evidencing such receipt at the fax number listed
below.


City Engineer
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012
425-745-1891 (p)
425-745-9650 (f)


Bruce Dees & Associates LLC
222 E 26th Street, Suite 202


Tacoma, Washington 98421
(253) 627-7947 (p)
(253) 627-6661 (f)


18. General Terms


18.1 Integration. The written terms and provisions of this Agreement, together
with all referenced Exhibits, supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as
entering into or forming a part of, or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement.


The entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereunder is
contained in this Agreement and the referenced Exhibits.


18.2 Priority of Documents. In the event that the language and provisions of
this Agreement are contrary to or conflict with any language or provisions set forth in any


Page 13 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 17 of 98







exhibit to this Agreement, the language and provisions of this Agreement shall control, and
the contrary or conflicting language or provisions of the exhibit(s) shall be disregarded and
shall be considered void. Consultant's standard terms and conditions, whether printed on,
attached to, or otherwise incorporated into an exhibit or elsewhere, shall not be binding on
Owner.


18.3 Assignment. Consultant shall not assign any portion of its duties or
obligations under this Agreement without the City's prior written consent. Any assignment of
this Agreement by Consultant without the prior written consent of the City shall be void.


18.4 Modification. No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly
authorized representative of City and Consultant.


18.5 Waiver. A waiver of any breach by either party shall not constitute a
waiver of any subsequent breach.


18.6 Exhibits. The Exhibits included in the Agreement are identified below.
Any inconsistency or conflict between these Exhibits (all as may be modified by the latest
amendment) shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following descending order of
importance:


18.6.1 Exhibit A, Scope of Work;


18.6.2 Exhibit B, Project Schedule;


18.6.3 . Exhibit C, Cost Summary;


18.6.4 Exhibit D, Key Subconsultant List;


18.6.5 Exhibit E, Key Personnel List;


18.6.6 Exhibit F, Insurance


18.7 Authorized Signatures. By their signatures below each party represents
that they are fully authorized to sign for and on behalf of the named principal above.


FN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their respective authorized officers or representatives as of the day and year written below.


CITY OF MILL CREEK BRUCE DEES & ASSOCIATES
Li^e^


,(r~;vx i^^
Rebecca Polizzotto, City Manager Name


Date:_ Date: Y\ j^f, Y; ^'/^


Page 14 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 18 of 98







ATTEST:


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


Scott Missall, City Attorney


Page 15 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 19 of 98







EXHIBIT 'A'


CITY OF MILL CREEK
MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK FIELD IMPROVEMENTS


April 11, 2018
Revised April 20,2018
Revised May 1, 2018


Description


The City of Mill Creek (Client) intends to replace the existing synthetic turf field and convert the existing
lighting to LED lighting at Mill Creek Sports Park. Bruce Dees & Associates (BDA) will provide
professional services for preparation of contract drawing and specifications and estimated probable cost
of construction and bidding phase. Work performed by subconsultants is as follows:


Stantec Inc - Floodlightmg and Electrical Engineering


All final drawings will be produced on AutoCAD. Coordination of all drawings and contract documents


will be by Bruce Dees & Associates, LLC.


Program
Program elements to be designed include:


1. Replacement of synthetic turf.


2. Replace the existing floodlighting with LED floodlighting.
3. Design and install a 48 inch ADA gate into the existing field fencing that will serve as a


primary entrance off the main parking lot.
4. Design and install a new Plaque.
5. Coordinate RCO grant requirements into the design bid documents.


Scope of Work


I. SCHEMATIC DESIGN


The specific scope of work is as follows:


Backsround Data Collection:


1. Review the goals, objectives and program of activities and facilities with the City.


2. Review existing as-built information.


3. Review site conditions.


4. Electrical: design documentation for replacing existing lights with new LED lights on the


existing field light poles and parking lot poles. Light will be connected to existing electrical
circuits.


Permits:


All permit fees to be paid directly by the Client.


Turf Tour: Conduct a one day tour of existing local turf facilities to review various brands and


installations and establish a list of products to include in the contract documents.


Schematic Plan:


1. Develop schematic level plans and details and estimated construction costs to address the


program, site constraints, and background information.


IVIeetings:
• Meet with the client at the end of schematic design for review.


1 of6 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 20 of 98







Products:


• 24" x 36" plans and details.


• Estimate of probable construction cost.


• Minutes from all meetings.


II. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROGRAM ELEMENTS


In the Design Development Phase, BDA will finalize the design of the program elements and
describe the size and character of the entire project for approval by the Client. Consideration shall


be given to availability of materials, equipment and labor, construction sequencing and scheduling,


user safety and maintenance requirements. Design Development includes the following:


Disciplines CoordmatiQfv Coordination of the work with other involved consultants for the


project.


Document Checking: Review and coordination of documents prepared for the project.


Permitting Authority Consulting: Research of critical applicable regulations, applicable laws,


statutes, regulations, and codes.


Site and Lighting Design: Continued development and expansion of Schematic Design Documents


to establish the final scope, relationships, forms, size, and appearance of the project through plans,


sections and elevations, typical construction details, materials selections, and equipment layouts.


Cost Estimatins: Development of a probable construction cost. Costs shall reflect the level of


design elements presented in the Design Development documents, plus appropriate design


contingencies to encompass unidentified scope ultimately included in the program. Analyze scope,
schedule and budget options.


Meetings:


• Client reviews at 60% and 100%.


Products:


• Design Development drawings.


• Catalog cut sheets for equipment and written description of materials.


• Design Development cost estimate.


• Minutes from all meetings.


III. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS


Based on the design development decisions, final construction plans will be prepared. Design
standards will comply with City of Mill Creek. Construction drawings will be developed as
follows:


Construction Documents:


Composite Site Plan: This plan will provide an overall view of the entire project area with


specific items required by the Permit highlighted.


Demolition, Clearins, & Grubbing Plans: This plan will show the extent of the demolition and


clearing for the site.


Erosion ContTol Plan: This plan, if required, will show erosion control measures for the site,
along with details and notes.


Layout Plan: This plan will be developed at an appropriate scale. It will allow layout of all
facilities by coordinate and critical dimensions.


2 of 6 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 21 of 98







Grading and Drainage: This plan will be developed at an appropriate scale. It will show site


grading, including spot elevations, locations of existing catch basins and storm sewer lines, and
other buried utilities dashed.


Site Sections and Details: This plan will show cross sections for various site details to include
48" ADA gate and plaque. Details will be referenced from the plans as well as from the details


to the plans.


Synthetic Turf Plans and Details: This plan and details will be for replacement of turf.


Electrical: These plans will show complete floodlighting design, including electrical service.


Specifications and Project Manual:
Specifications for the work will be developed in the CSI (Construction Specification Institute)
format. The project manual will utilize the Client's boilerplate. The overall estimated cost of


construction will be developed at this point and bidding strategy will be developed for the base bid
and alternates. The bids will be lump sum with alternates.


Cost Estimate:


A final probable cost of construction'will be prepared prior to finalizing a bid proposal format.
This estimate will be based on actual quantities and is the basis for establishing the lump sum bid


proposal, base bid, and alternates.


Meetings:


• Meet at 60% and 100% of the construction documents phase for review.


Products:


• Full size drawings and specifications for each review.


• Cost estimate at 60% and 100% complete.


TV. BIDDING PHASE


Begin Advertisement:
BDA will assist in writing the advertisement for the bid. The Client will be responsible for


advertising costs.


Coordination During BiddingJ'hase:


1. Answer contractor questions.


2. Conduct an on-site pre-bid conference.


3. Issue addendums if required.


Review Bids and Pre-Construction Coordination:


1. Review all bid proposals.
2. Review contractor qualifications and provide written recommendation award of contract.


3. Conduct a pre-construction conference with the contractor and the Client or as required.


Products:


1. Complete construction documents ready for advertisement, original drawings, and


specifications.
2. Final construction cost estimate.


3 of 6 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 22 of 98







The followins work is not included, but may be added by amendment:


V. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION


Construction Review:
We will provide periodic construction review. It is anticipated that construction will be completed


within a 2 month period. Construction review will include:


1. Review for approval or disapproval materials and equipment submittals required by the


Contractors.


2. Conduct surveillance of construction to include periodic visits to the site to observe the
progress and quality of the work. Owner's representative to attend where feasible.


3. Conduct weekly construction progress meetings. Generate and issue minutes to appropriate


parties.


4. Monitor construction progress and quality with decisions relative to contract performance.


Document progress with reports as appropriate.
5. Issue instructions for and of the Owner to the Contractor, respond to Contractor RFI's and


prepare field directives and change orders, if applicable.
6. Review the Contractor's work and approve or disapprove work in conformance with the


contract documents.


7. Keep the Owner advised as to the progress of the work.


8. Review the completed project conformance to the requirements of the contract documents.
9. Process contract payment requests.


VI. PROJECT CLOSE-OUT


Project CIose-Out:
1. Conduct a final review and prepare punch list.


2. Conduct a final review of punch list items and recommend acceptance.
3. All project closeout documents such as guarantees and warranties will be assembled in a bound


notebook.


4. Conduct a one-year warranty review.


4 of 6 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 23 of 98







Provided by Client


1. Site Access
Rights-of-entry upon all lands necessary for the performance of the above-described Scope of


Services.


2. Geotechnical Investigation
Though not anticipated, if a geotechnical study and any testing that may be required for design or


during construction, the Client will amend the contract for Bruce Dees & Associates, LLC to engage


a geotechnical consultant to perform the work.


3. Special Inspection/Testing
The Client will obtain and pay for any special inspections for existing or proposed utilities


compaction and concrete during construction. The Client will witness any irrigation pressure testing


that may be required if the existing irrigation is modified.


4. Survey
The existing topographic mapping and record drawings will be used for schematic design. If it is
determined that an updated survey is needed, the Client will provide a field topographic survey of the


site. The Client will contract directly with a surveyor for any additional survey that may be required


the surveyor.


5 of 6 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 24 of 98







EXTRA WORK


1. Expanded Scope of Work
If during the course of the project, the Client elects to expand the Scope of Work design fees for the
additional work shall be negotiated.


2. Schedule
In the event the schedule is extended by the Client, fees for additional time shall be negotiated.


3. Phased Development
The Scope of Work is based on a single construction phase. In the event the Client elects to divide


the project into multiple construction phases or separate construction contracts, the fees for additional


work to prepare the additional construction documents, bidding, and construction review shall be


increased proportionately.


4. Record Drawings
The contract documents will require the contractor to maintain marked up prints as record drawings.
If the client would like those record changes made as electronic changes to the original drawings the


fees for the additional time and expenses shall be negotiated.


6 of 6 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 25 of 98







EXHIBIT 'B'


CITY OF MILL CREEK
MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK FIELD IMPROVEMENTS


May 1, 2018


PROJECT SCHEDULE


After Notice to Proceed


Schematic Design 2 Weeks


Design Development 4 Weeks


Construction Documents 8 Weeks


Bidding To be determined by the City


lofl 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 26 of 98







EXHIBIT 'C'


CITY OF MILL CREEK
Mill Creek Sports Field Improvements


May 1,2018


SCOPE OF WORK
The work will entail the followln


I. BACKGROUND/SCHEMATIC
1. Research Background Information


2. Turf Tour


3 Develop Schematic Plans


4. Develop Schematic Cost Estimate


5. Client Review Meeting


6. Permit Pre-Application Meeting


Subtotal 23


24
6
3
2


43


II. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT
1. Design Development Plans


2.Updated Design Development Cost Estimate


3. 60% Documents Provided to Client for Review


4. Client 100% Review Meeting


Subtotal


24~


24


24
3


30


III. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS / PERIVIITTING
1. 60% Drafting and Specifications


2. Updated Probable Construction Cost


3. Client 60% Review Meeting


4.100% Drafting and Specifications


5. Updated Probable Construction Cost


6. Client 100% Review


7. Permit Application Coordination


IV. BIDDING


40


36


Subtotal 22 78


16
2
3


24
2
3
4
54 13


1 Answer Contractor Questions


Z.Pre-Bid Conference


3. Addenda / Review Proposals
Subtotal


^3RAND TOTATHOURS 58 102 131 18


LA V
LA IV
LA III
LA 11
Project Support


58
102
8


131
18


$170.00
$160.00
$145.00
$130.00


$75.00
Labor Subtotal


$9,860.00
$16,320.00
$1,160.00


$17,030.00
$1,350.00


$45,720.00


1. SCHEMATIC
II. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT
III. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS / PERMITTING
IV. BIDDING


Other Costs


Printing / Misc
Mileage


Subtotal


$10,810.00
$9,420.00


$24,215.00
$1,275.00


$45,720.00


$80.00
$100.00
$180.00


BDA TOTAL $45,900.00^


Electrical Engineer - Stantec Inc.


Structural Engineer
$10,685.00


$3,000.00
15.00%
15.00%


Subtotal


$12,287.75
$3,450.00


$15,737.75


GRAND TOTAT $61,637.75


Bruce Dees & Associates 1 of2


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 27 of 98







EXHIBIT -C-
CITY OF MILL CREEK


Mill Creek Sports Field Improvements


THIS WORK IS NOT INCLUDED, BUT MAY BE ADDED BY AMENDMENT:


V. CONSTRUCTION REVIEW
1. Weekly Constmction Progress Meetings and Meeting Minutes


2. Periodic Monitoring of Work for Conformance with Contract Documents


3. Review of Submlttals / RFI's / Changes in Work / Field Directives


4. Review of Contractor Progress Payments


VI. PROJECT CLOSEOUT


16
2
2


Subtotal 20


16
6


32
1


55


12
2
22


1. Conduct Final Review and Punchlist


2. Review Project Closeout Document for Compliance (Warranties, etc)


3. Conduct Punchlist Backcheck and Recommend Final Accepance


Subtotal


"5T


0.5


1 11


1
0.5


0.5


GRAND TOTAL HOURS ~2^ ^ ~2A


LA V
LA IV
LA III
LA 11
Project Support


21
0
0


66
24


$170.00
$160.00
$145.00
$130.00


$75.00
Labor Subtotal


Subtotal


$3,570.00
$0.00
$0.00


$8,580.00
$1,800.00


$13,950.00


$12,200.00
$1,750.00


$13,950.00


$100.00
$100.00


V. CONSTRUCTION REVIEW
VI. PROJECT CLOSEOUT


Other Costs


Printing / Misc
Mileage


$200.00


BDA TOTAL


Electrical Engineer - Stantec Inc.


GRAND TOTAL


$3,705.00 15.00%
Subtotal


$14,150.00


$4,260.75
$4,260.75


$18,410.75^


Bruce Dees & Associates 2 of 2


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 28 of 98







EXHIBIT 'D'


CITY OF MILL CREEK
MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK FIELD IMPROVEMENTS


May 1, 2018


SUBCOSULTANT LIST


Stantec, Inc - Electrical Engineer


Chris Fote


lofl 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 29 of 98







EXHIBIT 'E'


CITY OF MILL CREEK
MILL CREEK SPORTS PARK FIELD IMPROVEMENTS


May 1, 2018


KEY PERSONNEL LIST


Bruce Dees, FASLA Principal-in-Charge
Shawn Jensen, PLA Principal
Rachel Lingard, PLA


lofl 5/1/18


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 30 of 98







BRUCE-4


^ORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILIP^ INSURANCE
OP ID: sn/


DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)


05/07/2018
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.


IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).


PRODUCER 253-756-2000
Pilkey-Hopping & Ekberg, Inc.
2102'N. Pearl St, Suite 1~02
Tacoma, WA 98406-2551
Shawn McClaln


INSURED Bruce Dees & Associates
Sherryl Sales
222 E: 26th St #202
Tacoma, WA 98421


gg^ACT Shawn McClain
^^253-756.2000 ^1^253-756.5336
^^ss: shawn@pheinsurance.c6nf


INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE


INSURER A :Mutual of Enumclaw


INSURER a travelers Insurance Co


INSURER C :


INSURER D :


INSURER E:


INSURER F:


NAIC#
14761
36161


COVERAGES CERTIFICATI NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.


INSR
LTB_


A


A


A
B


T/PE OF INSURANCE


x


x


COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY


CLAIMS-MADE | X I OCCUR


POLICY


OTHER:


x


x


ANY AUTO
OWNED


%RTEODS,


GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:!'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:REGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:


^D?ERC°f D LOG


s_


AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY


AUTOS'ONLY


UTO
D
FONLY


i ONLY


LE LIABILITYHBILITY


-Y


.Y
>


UMBRELLA LIAB


EXCESS LIAB


DED


sc
AC
NC
AC


HEDULED
tos
•N-OWNED
TOS ONLY


OCCUR


CLAIMS-MADE


RETENTIONS


WORKERS COMPENSATJPN.
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y ^ ^
a,NY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes,describe under
DESCRfpfJON OF OPERATIONS below
Property Section


PROFESSIONAL


WDL
INSD


x


1/A


iUBR
WVD


x


POLICY NUMBER


CPP0003529


SPP0003529


STATE MANDATE


:PP0003529
;LAIIVIS MADE - 3 YR ERP


POLICY EFF
IMMfDDfYYYYI


03/17/2018


03/17/2018


63/17/2018
03/17/2018


PpUCYEXP
IMM/DD/YYYY1


03/17/2019


03/17/2019


03/17/2619^


03/17/2019


LIMITS


EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGETQ_RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)


MED EXP (Any one person)


PERSONAL SADV INJURY


GENERAL AGGREGATE


PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGB_
Emp Ben.


COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accldenn


BODILY INJURY (Per person)


BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)


EACH OCCURRENCE


AGGREGATE


PER I I OTH-
STATUTE I I ER


E.L. EACH ACCIDENT


E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE!


E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
ERISA
E&O


5 1,000,000


5 300,000
, 10,000


, 1,000,000


5 2,000,000


, 2,000,000


, 1,000,000


, 1,000,000


s_


A-


1-


1.


1,


i_


s-


g 1,000,000


$_


$
400,000


2,000,000


DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101 , Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)


Holder shall be named as an additional insured, coverage is primary
& non-contributory, waiver of subrogation applicable per policy forms and
condytionslCG"2^l6'047l3TcG2yiO'.o3ri3Tc^bT^^
Sports Park Field Improvements; A 30 day cancellation provision appliens


CERTIFICATE HOLDER


City of Mill Creek
15728 Main St
Mill Creek, WA 98012


CANCELLATION


SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.


AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE


j^'CA—
ACORD25(2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.


The ACORD name and logo are registered marks ofACORD


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Mill Creek Sports Park Turf & Light Replacement Project - Design Service... Page 31 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 32 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 33 of 98







CONTRACT 2018
CITY OF MILL CREEK


CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
[ARCHITECT-ENGINEER SERVICES]


1. Parties


1.1 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the City of
Mill Creek, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, Washington, 98012, a Washington municipal
corporation (the "City") and WHPaciflc, Inc], a corporation organized under the laws of the


state of Washington, located and doing business at 12100 NE 195th St, Ste 300, Bothell WA
98011 ("Consultant") (collectively at times referred to as "Parties"), and shall be effective
upon the authorized signatures of both Parties to this Agreement ("Effective Date").


2. Recitals


2.1 The City desires to retain the Consultant to perform certain professional


design services related to the Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project (the "Project").


2.2 The City solicited for professional services as required by law, including
RCW Chapter 39.80.


2.3 The Consultant represents it is available and able to provide qualified


personnel and facilities necessary to accomplish the work and services contemplated herein
within the required time and in accordance with the City's requirements and professional


standards.


In consideration of the mutual benefits and promises of this Agreement, the Parties enter
into this Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein.


3. Scope of Work


3.1 The City hereby retains the Consultant upon the terms and conditions
contained herein to perform certain work and services on the Project. The work and services


for the Project to be performed by the Consultant are set forth in the Scope of Work,
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the Work").


3.2 The City has relied upon the qualifications of the Consultant in entering
into this Agreement. By execution of the Agreement, Consultant represents it possesses the


ability, skill, and resources necessary to perform the Work and is familiar with all applicable
current laws, rules, and regulations that reasonably relate to the Work.


3.3 It shall be the responsibility of the Consultant to gather and become
familiar with all site information, including existing improvements, before starting and


during completion of the Work. The City may make available to the Consultant copies of as"
built plans, drawings, survey notes, studies, soil reports, maintenance and performance
records, and other relevant data, and property descriptions of various City facilities related to


Page 1 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 34 of 98







the Project, if any, which are readily available and on file at the City. If provided, these
documents are solely for additional information to the Consultant and do not relieve the
Consultant of its duties and obligations under this Agreement nor do they constitute any


representation or warranty by the City as to conditions or other matters related to the Project.


3.4 Consultant shall take all precautions reasonably necessary to perform the
Work and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents and subconsultants in


the performance of the Work.


3.5 Even though Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to


control and direct the performance and details of the Work, the Work must meet the approval


of the City and shall be subject to the City's general right of inspection and supervision to
secure the satisfactory completion of this Agreement.


4. Period of Performance


4.1 Completion Date. Consultant shall commence the Work upon the City's


issuance of the notice to proceed and shall complete all Work no later than March 31, 2019
("Completion Date"), unless extended or terminated earlier by the City pursuant to the terms


and conditions of this Agreement. The "Period of Performance" is the period of time


between the Effective Date and the Completion Date.


4.2 Project Schedule. The general Project Schedule is set forth in Exhibit B,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Time is of the essence for the


Project.


4.3 Time Extensions. The Total Price, Period of Performance, and task


budgets shall not be increased because of any unwarranted delays or costs attributable to the
Consultant. In the event of a delay not attributable to the Consultant that could not be


reasonably anticipated and results in an increase in costs to perform the Work, the City may


at its discretion, through the execution of an amendment, increase the Total Price, Period of


Performance, and/or task budget.


5. Administration and Supervision


5.1 City. The City Engineer or its designee (who shall be designated in
writing by the City) shall perform day-to-day management of this Agreement. Unless


otherwise indicated in writing by the City Manager or its designee, the City Engineer will
issue notices to proceed, approve all requests for payment, authorize termination or
modification of tasks, and approve in writing changes to the task budgets outlined in the Cost
Summary, Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, provided


that such changes do not impact the Total Price or the Period of Performance. The City


Engineer will also be responsible for determining when the Consultant has satisfactorily
performed all Work and for ensuring that the Consultant complies with all provisions of this
Agreement.


5.2 Consultant. The Consultant represents that it has, or will obtain, all


personnel necessary to perform the Work and that such personnel shall be qualified,


Page 2 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 35 of 98







experienced, and licensed as may be necessary or required by laws and regulations to


perform the Work. All services required under this Agreement shall be performed by the


Consultant, its employees, or by subconsultants whose selection has been authorized by the


City; provided that the City's authorization shall not relieve the Consultant or its
subconsultants from any duties or obligations under this Agreement or at law to perform the


Work in a satisfactory and competent manner. Consultant shall ensure that all contractual
duties, requirements and obligations that the Consultant owes to the City shall also be owed
to the City by the Consultant's subconsultants retained to perform the Work.


5.2.1 Authorized Subconsultants. The Agreement shall identify in the
Key Subconsultant List, Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference, the subconsultants that are authorized to perform Work under this Agreement, or
shall state that there are no subconsultants.


5.2.2 Process for Adding or Removing Key Subconsultants


5.2.2.1 If during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant wishes to


add or remove a key subconsultant as identified in the Key Subconsultant List, the


Consultant shall provide the City Engineer with a written request identifying the proposed
change and obtain written authorization by the City.


5.2.2.2 The City has sole discretion to approve or reject a proposed
change in a key subconsultant. Before any key subconsultant not already identified in the
Agreement can perform any Work, the Consultant must obtain written authorization from the


City.


5.2.3 Process for Adding or Removing Key Personnel


5.2.3.1 If during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant wishes to


add or remove key personnel as identified in the Key Personnel List, Exhibit E, attached


hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, the Consultant shall provide the City


Engineer with a written request identifying the proposed change and obtain written
authorization by the City.


5.2.3.2 The City has sole discretion to approve or reject a proposed


change in any key personnel. Before any key persomiel not already identified in the


Agreement can perform any Work, the Consultant must obtain written authorization from the


City.


5.2.3.3 If a change is made substituting or changing assigned key
personnel or sub consultants, the Consultant shall pay any and all costs associated therewith,
including "Transfer of Knowledge and Information." Transfer of Knowledge and


Information shall include all time, labor hours, and costs for reviewing Project


documentation, participating in meetings with Project personnel, and participating in site
visits to familiarize the person or subconsultant with the Project, the Work, and the Project


location(s).


Page 3 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 36 of 98







5.2.4 City May Request Removal of Subconsultant or Personnel. The


Consultant shall remove from the Project any personnel or subconsultant, including key


personnel or key subconsultants if, after the matter has been duly considered by the City and
the Consultant, the City considers such removal appropriate or necessary and in the best


interests of the Project and so advises the Consultant m writing.


5.3 Nondiscrimination. In all hiring or employment decisions arising from
this Agreement, there shall be no unlawful discrimination against any employee or applicant


for employment because of sex, age, race, color, creed, national origin, marital status, sexual


orientation, political ideology, veteran or military status, genetic information, family medical


history, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap, unless based upon a
bona fide occupational qualification. This requirement shall apply to, but not be limited to,


the following: employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of


compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. No person shall be
denied or subjected to discrimination in receipt of the benefit of any services or activities


made possible by or resulting from this Agreement because of any of the protected
characteristics identified above.


6. Changes in Work


6.1 The City may at any time direct the Consultant to make additions within
the general scope of the Work, delete portions of the Project, or revise portions of the Work.


Any direction from the City that results in an increase or decrease in the Scope of Work or


Project Schedule, changes the Total Price or Period of Performance, or changes affecting the


Scope of Work and Total Price for the Project shall be made only by an amendment to this
Agreement prior to the work being performed. Subject to Section 6.2 below, the City


Manager is the only authorized City representative who may sign such amendments.


6.2 Changes described in Section 6.1 above may be made in writing by the
City Engineer if such changes individually, and cumulatively as to all such changes for the
Project, do not increase the Total Price specified in Section 10.1.


6.3 In the event the Consultant identifies something that may materially
impact the Scope of Work, Project Schedule, and/or Total Price, Consultant shall


immediately inform the City Engineer.


7. Responsibility of the Consultant


7.1 Standard of Care


7.1.1 The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality,


technical adequacy and accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of the Work and all


plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services prepared or performed
pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall perform the Work and complete the


Project so that it conforms to the highest professional standards. The Consultant shall be


responsible for the professional standards, performance, and actions of all persons and firms
performing the Work. The Consultant shall, without additional compensation, correct or


revise any errors, omissions, or specific breaches of a contractual obligation in the Work or


Page 4 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 37 of 98







any plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services performed under this
Agreement.


7.1.2 The City's acceptance of any portion of the Work, or any plans,


drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and other products of the professional services
rendered hereunder shall not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the


adequacy and accuracy thereof. The City's review, approval, acceptance of, or payment for
all or any of the Work, shall not be construed nor shall it operate as a waiver of any rights
under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this


Agreement.


7.1.3 The Consultant shall be knowledgeable and familiar with the
current edition of the City's Contract Documents (available from the City), and the current


edition of WSDOT Standard Specifications for Roads, Bridges and Municipal Construction.
All technical specifications drafted by the Consultant shall be consistent with these
documents and shall not create any conflict therewith.


7.1.4 The Consultant shall promptly bring to the City's attention all
concerns that the Consultant has regarding the Work, design or any finding, conclusions, or


final decisions made by the City. The Consultant shall, at the City's request, provide the City


with a written evaluation of its concerns, along with proposed solutions to any identified


problems.


7.2 Maintenance of Protect Documentation


7.2.1 Upon request by the City Engineer, the Consultant shall provide


the City with access to all documents and correspondence, including e-mail communications,
memoranda, computer files, and all other materials prepared or used in performance of the


Work.


7.2.2 The Consultant acknowledges that information and documentation


submitted to the City will in all likelihood be considered a public record in accordance with
the Revised Code of Washington and may not be exempt from disclosure under the


Washington State Public Records Act.


7.2.3 The Consultant acknowledges that unauthorized disclosure of


information or documentation concerning this Project may cause substantial economic loss or
harm to the City. Except as otherwise required by court order or subpoena, the Consultant


shall not without prior written authorization by the City Engineer allow the release,
dissemination, distribution, sharing, copying, or other publication or disclosure of
information or documentation obtained, discovered, shared or produced pursuant to this


Agreement.


8. Commencement and Monthly Reports


8.1 Notice to Proceed. After execution of this Agreement by the City and the


Consultant, the City will issue a written notice to proceed on the Project and may issue


written notice(s) to proceed on specific tasks thereof if necessary to produce specified work


Page 5 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 38 of 98







products. Upon receipt of a notice to proceed, the Consultant shall promptly commence


work.


8.2 Monthly Reports. Unless otherwise stated in the Scope of Work, the


Consultant shall submit to the City Engineer with each invoice a monthly report in a format
approved by the City Engineer sufficient to show the activities completed and the Project
progress as measured against the Project Schedule and Cost Summary. At a minimum the
monthly report shall identify work completed, costs incurred, budget status (budget vs.


estimated balance to complete), amendments, project schedule, any variance between


planned vs. actual Project performance, all issues that may result in completion of any task
beyond the established schedule or task budget, and all issues that may result in an increase


in Total Price.


9. Compensation


9.1 The City will pay the Consultant for authorized and satisfactorily completed
Work in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Consultant shall be paid on the basis


of time actually expended and out-of-pocket expenses in accordance with the work hours and


the rate(s) and for all supervision, labor, supplies, materials, equipment or use thereof, taxes,
and for all other necessary incidentals all as specified in the Cost Summary. In no event,


however, shall the total cumulative payment(s) paid by the City exceed the sum of 198,040
Dollars ($198,040.00), including applicable state taxes ("Total Price"). Use of the
managements reserve amount of $18,004 may not be spent without written approval of the
City. The Total Price is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement and shall not


be exceeded without prior written authorization from the City in the form of a negotiated and
executed amendment.


9.2 Invoice Process. The Consultant shall submit to the City Engineer an invoice for


payment for Work once per month. The invoice shall identify the Work completed since the
previous invoice, and shall be computed pursuant to this Agreement. The invoice may be


combined with the monthly report specified in Section 9.2.


9.2.1 Invoice Details. Invoices shall detail the Work by task, hours, and


employee name and level for which payment is being requested; include copies of all
invoices from authorized subconsultants and suppliers for which payment is being requested;
and shall itemize, and include copies of, receipts and invoices for all other direct costs.


9.2.2 Maximum Amount. At no time shall the total cumulative amounts


paid for the Work (calculated as a percentage of the Total Price) exceed the Total Price or the
amount that would be due based on the percentage of the Work satisfactorily completed as


determined by the City.


9.2.3 Payment. Upon acceptance by the City of the invoiced Work,


which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld, Consultant shall be compensated in
accordance with the City's usual procedures. In the event of a disputed invoice, the City may


pay the undisputed amounts and withhold from payment the disputed portion of the invoice.


Page 6 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 39 of 98







9.3 Final Payment. Final payment to the Consultant for the Work will be made in


accordance with the City's usual procedures after all of the following are verified by the City
Engineer:


9.3.1 Satisfactory completion of all of the Work;


9.3.2 Receipt by the City of the plans, studies, surveys, photographs,


maps, calculations, notes, reports, warranties and all other documents and/or deliverables


which are required to be prepared and submitted by the Consultant;


9.3.3 Delivery of all equipment and/or materials purchased specifically


for the Project where the City has reimbursed the Consultant for such costs.


9.4 Release. Acceptance of any payment by Consultant shall constitute a release of


all payment claims against City arising under this Agreement as to such portion of the


Services. No payment to the Consultant, whether periodic or final, shall constitute a waiver
or release by the City of any claim, right or remedy it may have against the Consultant


regarding performance of the Work as required by this Agreement.


10. Termination of Agreement


10.1 Termination for Default


10.1.1 The City may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part and at


any time, in writing if the Consultant substantially fails to fulfill any or all of its material
obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the City.


10.1.2 If the City terminates all or part of this Agreement for default, the
City shall determine the amount of work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination
and the amount owing to the Consultant using the criteria set forth below; provided, that (a)
no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on unperformed Work and (b) any payment
due to the Consultant at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any


additional costs the City incurs or will incur because of the Consultant's default. In such


event, the City shall consider the actual costs incurred by the Consultant in performing the
Work to the date of termination, the amount of Work originally required which was


satisfactorily completed to the date of termination, whether that Work is in a form or of a


type which is usable and suitable to the City at the date of termination, the cost to the City of
completing the Work itself or of employing another firm to complete it and the
inconvenience and time which may be required to do so, and other factors which affect the


value to the City of the Work performed to the date of termination. Under no circumstances


shall payments made under this provision exceed the Total Price set forth in this Agreement.


This provision shall not preclude the City from filing claims and/or commencing litigation
to secure compensation for damages incurred beyond that covered by withheld payments.


10.1.3 If a termination for default by the City is ultimately determined to
be wrongful, it shall be deemed a termination for convenience, and not a breach of this


Agreement.


Page 7 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 40 of 98







10.2 Termination for Convenience


10.2.1 The City may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part and at
any time, in writing for the convenience of the City.


10.2.2 If the City terminates this Contract for convenience, the City shall
pay the Consultant the amount otherwise due in accordance with this Agreement for services
satisfactorily performed to the date of termination. Under no circumstances shall payments


made under this provision exceed the Total Price set forth in this Agreement.


10.3 Consultants Duties Upon Termination


10.3.1 Upon receipt of a termination notice, whether by default or for
convenience, the Consultant shall at no additional cost to the City:


10.3.1.1 Promptly discontinue all Work affected (unless the notice


directs otherwise);


10.3.1.2 Terminate all contracts with subconsultants to the extent


they relate to the Work terminated; and


10.3.1.3 No later than fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of
termination, promptly deliver or otherwise make available to the City all data, drawings,


electronic drawing files, specifications, calculations, reports, estimates, summaries, and other
Project documentation, such other information and materials as the Consultant or


subconsultants may have accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or


in progress and all equipment/materials purchased specifically for the Project where the City
has paid the Consultant for such items.


10.3.1.4 Take any action necessary, or that the City may reasonably


direct, for the protection and preservation of property or Work related to this Agreement that
is in the possession of the Consultant and in which the City has or may acquire an interest.


11. Ownership and Use of Documents


11.1 All documents, drawings, specifications, designs, computer programs,
software, reports and other work product (collectively referred to as "Work Product")


developed or produced by Consultant for the City in connection with the Work rendered
under this Agreement shall be owned by the City. Consultant shall provide such Work
Product to the City on a data disk compatible with the City's computer equipment and
programs. As between the Consultant and the City, the Work Product shall be works made


for hire under all applicable copyright law and the City shall own any and all copyrights to
such Work Product. Consultant agrees to transfer and assign all ownership rights and


copyrights to such Work Product to the City to give effect to this Section. Consultant further
waives any and all moral rights (including rights of integrity and attribution) in and to the
Work Product. Re-use of any Work Product by the City for other than the Project that is the
subject of this Agreement or modification in use by the City of any of the Work Product
without the Consultant's prior written approval shall be at the City's sole risk.


Page 8 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 41 of 98







11.2 To the extent it is determined any other records held by the
Consultant relating to the Services are subject to the Washington Public Records Act
(RCW 42.56), the Consultant shall promptly deliver such records to the City for
purpose of responding to a public records request. This section shall survive
termination of this agreement.


12. Third-Party Claims and Disputes


12.1 At the City's request, Consultant will assist the City in review and


evaluation of claims and disputes, preparing information for the City's legal counsel,
providing services as witness in litigation or arbitration to which the City is a party, and


providing other services in connection with actual or potential claims or disputes arising out
of the Work, regardless of whether or not consultant is named in such legal action. The


Parties shall cooperate to agree on the compensation for such services. If Consultant is


determined to be responsible for the claim, dispute or litigation due to its act, omission,


negligence or breach of this Agreement, it shall remit back to the City the amounts paid
under this Section to the extent of such act, omission, negligence or breach.


13. Audit and Access to Records


13.1 The Consultant, including its subconsultants, shall maintain books,
records, documents, and other evidence directly pertinent to performance of the Work in


accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices consistently applied.


The City, or any of its duly authorized representatives, shall, for the purpose of audit and


examination, have access to and be permitted to inspect such books, records, documents, and


other evidence for inspection, audit, and copying for a period of six years after completion of


the Project. The City shall also have access to such books, overhead data, records and


documents during the performance of the Work if deemed necessary by the City to verify
work performed and invoices, to assist in negotiations for amendments to the Agreement or


modifications to tasks, and to resolve claims and disputes.


13.2 Audits conducted under this Section shall be in accordance with generally


accepted auditing standards and established procedures and guidelines of the reviewing or


auditing agency.


13.3 Consultant shall provide the City, six years after completion of the Project,


all original books, records, documents, and other evidence directly pertinent to performance
of the Work.


14. Legal Relations


14.1 The Consultant shall comply, and shall ensure its sub consultants comply,


with all the terms of this Agreement and the City resolutions and federal, state and local laws,
regulations and ordinances applicable to the Work to be performed under this Agreement.


14.2 In performing the Work, the Consultant and its subconsultants, employees,


agents and representatives shall be acting as independent contractors and shall not be deemed


Page 9 of 15
726492,6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 42 of 98







or construed to be employees or agents of the City in any manner whatsoever. The


Consultant shall not hold itself out as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of the City by


reason hereof and will not make any claim, demand, or application to or for any right or


privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the City. The Consultant shall be solely
responsible for any claims/costs and/or losses arising from the Consultant's failure to pay


wages, compensation, benefits, or taxes and/or pay for services, supplies, and/or
materials provided by Consultant employees, agents and representatives, including


subconsultants, and will protect, defend, indemnify and hold the City harmless therefrom.


14.3 The City's rights and remedies in this Agreement are in addition to any


other rights and remedies provided by law. The City may exercise such rights and remedies
in any order and at any time as it determines necessary or appropriate.


15. Indemnification and Insurance


15.1 Indemnification.


15.1.1 Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers ("Indemnified Parties") from and against all


claims, damages, losses, and expenses, asserted against one or more Indemnified Parties
arising out of or resulting from the Consultant's performance of the Work or any obligation


under this Agreement, to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the
Consultant, its subconsultants, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for


whose acts they may be liable ("Indemnified Claim"), regardless of whether or not such


claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by the Indemnified Parties. Such obligation
shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity


which would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section. Where an


Indemnified Claim is caused by or results from the concurrent negligence of the Indemnified


Parties and the Consultant, the Consultant s duty to indemnify and defend the Indemnified
Parties as provided for herein shall apply only to the extent of the negligence of the
Consultant or its subcontractors, consultants or other parties for whom the Consultant is


responsible.


15.1.2 Consultant's obligations under this Section include, but are not


limited to, all claims against the Indemnified Parties by an employee or former employee of
the Consultant or any of its subcontractors. For this purpose, the Consultant expressly
waives, as respects to the Indemnified Parties only, all immunity and limitation on liability
under any Industrial Insurance Act, including Title 51 RCW, or other worker's compensation


act, disability act, or other employee benefit act of any jurisdiction, which would otherwise


be applicable in the case of such a claim.


BY SIGNING THE AGREEMENT THE OWNER AND CONSULTANT CERTIFY
THE WAIVER OF IMMUNITY SPECIFIED BY THIS PROVISION WAS
MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED.


15.1.3 Consultant's obligations under this Section shall survive expiration


or termination of the Agreement. In the event of litigation between the parties to enforce the


Page 10 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 43 of 98







rights under this Section, reasonable attorney fees and costs shall be awarded to the


prevailing party.


15.2 Insurance.


15.2.1 Insurance. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the


duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder


by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.


15.2.2 No Limitation. Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required


by the agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage
provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any remedy available at


law or in equity.


15.2.3 Minimum Scope of Insurance. Consultant shall obtain insurance


of the types described below:


1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired


and leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services


Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent
liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to
provide contractual liability coverage. The City shall be named as an


additional insured under the Consultant's Automobile Liability
insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the City.


2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO


occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from
premises, operations, independent contractors and personal injury and
advertising injury. The City shall be named as an additional insured
under the Consultant's Commercial General Liability insurance policy
with respect to the work performed for the City.


3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial
Insurance laws of the state of Washington.


4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's


profession.


15.2.4 Minimum Amounts of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain the


following insurance limits:


1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit
for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.


2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no
less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.


Page 11 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 44 of 98







3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less
than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.


15.2.5 Other Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies are to contain,


or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, Professional


Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance:


1. The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with


respect to the City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool
coverage maintained by the City shall be in excess of the Consultant's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.


2. The Consultant's insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage


shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days
prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been


^iven to the City. In the event that such endorsement cannot be


obtained from Consultant's insurance carrier, Consultant shall be


responsible for providing notice in accordance with the terms of this


provision.


15.2.6 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers


with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII.


15.2.7 Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish the City with


original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance


requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work, which is attached and


incorporated by this reference as Exhibit F.


15.2.8 Failure to Maintain Insurance. Failure on the part of the


Consultant to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of


contract, upon which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Consultant


to correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or
renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums


so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset
against funds due the Consultant from the City.


16. Disputes and Remedies


16.1 Choice of Law. This Agreement and all provisions hereof shall be


interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington in effect on the Effective


Date.


16.2 City Manager Review. All claims, counter-claims, disputes, and other


matters in question between the City and the Consultant arising out of or relating to this


Agreement shall be referred to the City Manager or a designee for determination, together
with all facts, data, contentions, and so forth which relate thereto. The City Manager shall


make a determination within thirty (30) calendar days of such referral.


Page 12 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 45 of 98







16.3 Alternate Dispute Resolution. Should the claim, counter-claims, or


disputes not be resolved by the City Manager's decision, the parties shall attempt to resolve


the matter through professional mediation, which shall be conducted within thirty (30)
calendar days of the City Manager's decision. The cost of mediation shall be shared


equally.


16.4 Exhaustion of Administrative Remedies. Referral to and determination by


the City Manager or a designee and ADR shall be a condition precedent to the
commencement of a civil action to adjudicate such dispute.


16.5 Jurisdiction & Venue^ The Superior Court of Snohomish County,


Washington, shall have exclusive jurisdiction and venue over any legal action arising under


this Agreement and the laws of the state of Washington shall apply.


17. Notice


17.1 Any notice required to be given under the terms of this Agreement shall be


in writing and directed to the party at the address set forth below. Notice shall be considered
issued and effective upon receipt thereof by the addressee-party. Facsimile notice shall be
considered effective with proof of confirmation that the addressee has received the facsimile.


Such proof would be a confirmation sheet evidencing such receipt at the fax number listed


below.


City Engineer
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012
425-745-1891 (p)
425-745-9650 (f)


WHPacifc, Inc
12100 NE 195th St. Suite 300
BothellWA 98011
425-951-4800


18. General Terms


18.1 Integration. The written terms and provisions of this Agreement, together
with all referenced Exhibits, supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other


representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as


entering into or forming a part of, or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement.
The entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereunder is


contained in this Agreement and the referenced Exhibits.


18.2 Priority of Documents. In the event that the language and provisions of
this Agreement are contrary to or conflict with any language or provisions set forth in any


exhibit to this Agreement, the language and provisions of this Agreement shall control, and


Page 13 of 15
726492.6/014455,00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 46 of 98







the contrary or conflicting language or provisions of the exhibit(s) shall be disregarded and
shall be considered void. Consultant's standard terms and conditions, whether printed on,


attached to, or otherwise incorporated into an exhibit or elsewhere, shall not be binding on


Owner.


18.3 Assignment. Consultant shall not assign any portion of its duties or
obligations under this Agreement without the City's prior written consent. Any assignment of


this Agreement by Consultant without the prior written consent of the City shall be void.


18.4 Modification. No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the


provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly
authorized representative of City and Consultant.


18.5 Waiver. A waiver of any breach by either party shall not constitute a


waiver of any subsequent breach.


18.6 Exhibits. The Exhibits included in the Agreement are identified below.
Any inconsistency or conflict between these Exhibits (all as may be modified by the latest
amendment) shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following descending order of
importance:


18.6.1 Exhibit A, Scope of Work;


18.6.2 Exhibit B, Project Schedule;


18.6.3 Exhibit C, Cost Summary;


18.6.4 Exhibit D, Key Subconsultant List;


18.6.5 Exhibit E, Key Personnel List;


18.6.6 Exhibit F, Insurance


18.7 Authorized Signatures. By their signatures below each party represents


that they are fully authorized to sign for and on behalf of the named principal above.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their respective authorized officers or representatives as of the day and year written below.


CITY OF MILL CREEK WHPacificJnc


Rebecca Polizzotto, City Manager Rich Reis, Office Manager


Date: Date: ^/^


Page 14 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 47 of 98







ATTEST;


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


Scott Missall, City Attorney


Page 15 of 15
726492.6/014455.00065


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 48 of 98







EXHIBIT A
City of Mill Creek


Seattle Hill Road Preservation
Project No. IS-PAVE -03


WHPACIFIC
SCOPE OF WORK


The work to be accomplished under this agreement wi!! beforWHPacific, inc. (CONSULTANT) to provide
engineering design services for the City of Mill Creek (CiTY). Services include the production of a survey
topographic map, documented CE for NEPA/ Plans/ Specifications and Engineer's Estimate (PS&E) for a
full grind and overlay of 2 inches with Hot Mix Asphalt on Miil Creek Road and Seattle Hilf Road from
Village Green Drive to 35 Ave SE. The project will include the foiiowing elements;


1) Grind and Overlay
2) Upgrading of ADA curb ramps
3} Replacement of broken median curbs
4) Upgrading the Rapid Flashing Beacon to current standards
5) Upgrading two traffic signal push buttons to current ADA standards
6} Re installing pavement markings
7) Re installing [oops


8) Upgrading signing and installation of new signing to meet current MUTCD standards


The project design and PS&E will be based upon the following standards:


1) WSDOT Local Agency Guidelines


2) WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipai Construction (2018)
3} WSDOT Standard Plans


4) Department of Ecology Current Stormwater Manual for Western Washington Low Impact
Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound


5) City of Mill Creek Design GuideiEnes


The CONSULTANT and the CITY have prepared the following detailed scope of services for this project:


1.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT


The CONSULTANT wiii provide project management and administration during the design phase of the
project/ to include:


1.1 General Project Management-The CONSULTANT will develop and maintain project
_s_c.ap_e_an.d_b.udge.t/..coordinatewi.th_C[r^_s.taff, coordina.te-a.nd revi&w-the-project-team's


work/ maintain project fiies, and conduct project team meetings to coordinate project
activities.


1.2 Progress Report / Invoices "- The CONSULTANT wiii prepare and submit progress
re ports/invoices to the CH~Y monthly.


1.3 Quality Control Reviews-The CONSULTANT wili perform quality review checks prior to
submittal of work to the CITY.


1.4 Project Coordination Meetings - The CONSULTANT wi!i attend up to two (2) project
coordination meetings at the Mii! Creek Public Works Department/ En conjunction with
the design submittal reviews. The CONSULTANT will prepare meeting notes and
distribute to all meeting participants.


Deiiverables:


Page 1 of 5


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 49 of 98







a. Invoice/Progress Report -1 copy per month (5 total)
b. Meeting Minutes ~1 copy via email


2.0 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY AND BASEIVIAP


The CONSULTANT will complete a topographic survey and develop a topographic base map for the


project area.


CONSULTANT will research the Snohomish County and the City of Mill Creek records to recover the
monumentation controlling the site, and establish a horizontal datum.


CONSULTANT will tie to at least four focal control monuments and reference them on the final drawings.
These monuments wi!i serve as the basis of horizontal coordinates and control the site.


CONSULTANT will tie into Snohomish County/CityofMi!! Creek horizontal & vertical datum for the sites


and reference the site benchmarks on the final drawing. NAD 83/91 horizontal and NAVD88 vertical wiil
be used per Snohomish County standards.


CONSULTANT will set two permanent vertical control benchmarks.


CONSULTANT will survey ail ADA ramps within the project limits, the fuii intersections to the right-of-


way iines at all intersections/ include three intersections that have traffic signal systems (Village Green
Drive/Penny Creek Road, Seattle HEii Road/Penny Creek Road and Seattle Hiii Road/35th Ave SE). Along


the remainder of the route CONSULTANT will locate evidence of the foiiowing existing improvements
(assuming that they are visible) within the areas grinding.


a. Storm drainage structures


b. Sanitary sewer manholes


c. Water valves


d. Natural gas valves


e. Traffic loop detectors


The base map wEii be prepared at a scaie of one inch equals twenty feet (1"=20') on full size plan sheets.
Base mapping wiii be tied to existing monumentation and defined on the plans.


Deliverabies:
a; Topographic Survey/Base map


3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL AND PERMITS


CONSULTANT will prepare an Environmental Classification Summary (ECS) for use En FWHA's NEPA


determination for the project. It is assumed that the appropriate NEPA mechanism for the project will
be Categorical Exclusion (DCE). The following tasks are included in the NEPA documentation:


3.1 Environmental Classification Summary-CONSULTANT will complete an ECS for the
project to address potential impacts to the environment from the project.


3.2 Cultural and Historic Resources - Project wil! have no adverse effects on


cultural/historic resources. CONSULTANT will coordinate with WSDOT Local Programs


and prepare a letter requesting an APE determination and work with WSDOT to obtain


Page 2 of 5


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 50 of 98







DAMP concurrence. CONSULTANT wili prepare an Area of Potential Effects document
which will include the foiiowing:


a. Vicinity Map
b. Project Description


c. Section, Township and Range


- d. Cross sections


e. Photographs


f. Areas of ground disturbance with estimate of excavation


g. Information on known staging areas or borrow sites to be used


If it is determined through consultation with DAMP that a cultural resources survey is
necessary for concurrence the CONSULTANT wi!! prepare a cultural resources report for


the Area of Potential Effects summarizing the findings of a literature review and cultural
resources survey. This wiii be presented for review by the CiTY. A finai report will then
be submitted to DAHP for concurrence.


3.3 STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA) - CITY wii! prepare the SEPA checklist.


Deliverables


a. Environmental Classification Summary


b. APE letter


4,0 50% DESIGN


4.1 50% Plans - The 50% Plans wi!! be prepared at I'^IO' scale (full size plan sheet) using
AutoCAD CEvi! 3D 2014 software, WHPaciflc and City of Mill Creek CAD standards.


Thefoiiowing is an anticipated sheet count for the plans:


S.heets.


1
1
8
15
2
15
5
3
4
54*


Description


Cover Sheet/VEcinity Map/Sheet Index
Legend/AbbreviatEons/Notes


Survey Alignment/Control Pian
Site Preparation/ Erosion Control Plan
Typical. Cross Sections


Paving Pians and detaiis
Curb Ramp Details


Signal pushbutton layout
Traffic controi plans
TOTAL


* Note sheet numbers are estimates.


4.2 50% Engineer's Estimate. The CONSULTANT wiil identify standard and non-standard bid


items, and wS!l provide itemized quantity calculations for ati contract bid items. An
engineer's estimate of construction costs wii! be prepared.


4.3 50% Specifications. The CONSULTANT will prepare project specifications. Specifications
will foliow the 2018 WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Road/ Bridge, and
Municipal Construction/ and WSDOT LAG manual requirements. The CONSULTANT wiil


Page 3 of 5


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 51 of 98







prepare project specific special provisions and incorporate relevant WSDOT General
Special Provisions to specify work not covered in the Standard Specifications.


4.4 Design Memorandum. The CONSULTANT will develop a design memorandum/ which
include a summary list of design elements and standards. The design memorandum will
be submitted before the 50% design submittal.


The CONSULTANT wii! send the 50% Design to the CITY for review and comment.


Deliverabies:
a. 50% Plans-1 electronic copy (PDF)


b. 50% Estimate -1 electronic copy (PDF)
c. 50% Specifications -1 electronic copy (PDF)


d. Design memo


5.0 100% DESIGN


The CONSULTANT wii! update the project design to the 100 percent complete stage. The CONSULTANT


will complete the following tasks:


5.1 100% Plans - The CONSULTANT wili address C!TY and WSDOT Local Programs comments
from the 100% review/ and advance the plans to the 100% complete stage.


5.2 100% Cost Estimate - The CONSULTANT wil! address CITY and WSDOT Local Programs


comments from the 100% review/ and update the cost estimate based on the 100%
Plans.


5.3 100% Contract Documents -The CONSULTANT will address Cmfand WSDOT Loea!


Programs comments from the 100% review/ and advance the Contract Documents.to


the 100% complete stage.


5.4 Comment Response -The CONSULTANT wil! review the CITY'S review comments/ and
prepare responses to ail comments.


The CONSULTANT wiii transmit a PDF copy of the 100% Plans, Specifications/ and Estimate to the CITY


and WSDOT Locai Programs for a finai review.


6.0 FINAL DESIGN


Once directed by the CITY/the CONSULTANT wii! modify the project to the current standard plan and
specifications, and produce a final set of Bid-Ready Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimate. The
CONSULTANT will complete the following tasks:


6.1 Final Plans" The CONSULTANT wHI address CiTY and WSDOT Local Programs comments
from the 100% review, if any, and finalize the plans for bid advertisement.


6.2 Final Cost Estimate-The CONSULTANT wEii address CITY and WSDOT Local Programs
comments from the 100% review, if any/ and finalize the cost estimate for bid
advertisement.


6.3 Final Contract Documents - The CONSULTANT will address CiT/ and WSDOT Local
Programs comments from the 100% review, if any, and finalize the contract documents


for bid advertisement.


Page 4 of 5


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 52 of 98







6.4 Comment Response-The CONSULTANT will review the CITY'S 100% review comments/
and prepare responses to ai! comments.


Finai Plans and Specifications will be provided in electronic (Word, PDF and AutoCAD) format/ and in
hard copy format. The CITY will upload the plans and specifications to Builder's Exchange for
distribution to Contractors.


Deliverabies:


a. Final Signed Plans - 1 electronic copy (PDF)
b. Final Signed Plans - 1 Full Size (22" X 34"} copies


c. Final Signed Plans - 1 Half Size (11" X IT} copies
d. Final Cost Estimate-1 copy (PDF)


e. Final Specifications -1 electronic copy (PDF)
f. Finai Specifications -1 hard copies


7.0 BIDDING SUPPORT


7.1 The CONSULTANT wii! assist the CITY with interpretation of project requirements/
Contractors' bid and prepare written responses to Contractor questions during the bid
process.


7.2 The CONSULTANT may develop up to three (3) addendums, as required during the
bidding period.


7.3 The CITY .will distribute Contract Documents via Builder's Exchange and place notices to
Bidders.


Deliverables:
a. Addendum package


ASSUMPTIONS


a. The project 100% design will be completed by November 2018.


b. One (1) invoice/Progress Report will be prepared per month.
c. The CONSULTANT will prepare construction pians in AutoCAD Civil 3D 2014 format.


OPTIONAL SERVICES.


Upon written approval by the CITY/ the CONSULTANT will provide engineering services beyond this
Scope of Work. Services may include additional meetings, adding additional or increasing the existing
design tasks/ construction management and inspection services, or other work deemed necessary by the


CITY; Such work will be specified in a written supplement to this agreement, which will establish the


scope and costs.


Page 5 of 5


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 53 of 98







EXHIBIT B
City of Mill Creek


Seattle Hill Road Preservation


Project No. 18-PAVE -03


WHPACIFIC
Project Schedule


Consultant will compiete PS&E by December 31, 2018


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 54 of 98







client:
:lroject;


TASK
NO.


1.0
1.1


1.2


1,3


1.4


2.0
2.1


2.2


2.3


2.4


2.5


2.6


2.7


3.0


3.1


5.0
5.1


5.2


5.3


7.0


7.1


7.2


7.3


7.4


8.0
8.1


-8,2


8.3


7.4


9.0


9.1


9.2


;ity of Mill Creek
Seattle Hill Road Preservation


TASK (Scope of Services)
.PROJECT MANAGEMENT.
_Generat project management.


Monthly invoices and progress reports
Project Coordination Meetings / Notes (2 Meetings)


_QA/QC


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
Research
Set control
Topo Sun/ey - Approx. 7000 LF^


Data processing
Utility research
Mapping
QA/QC


ENVIRONMENTAL AND PERMITS
NEPA


50% DESIGN
50% Plans
50% Estimates


50% Specs
Design Memo


100% PS&E
100% Plans
100% Estimates.
100% Specs
Comment Resep.nse


FINAL DESIGN
Final Plans
Final Estimates
Final Specs


Comment Response


BIDDING SUPPORT
Bidders questions


Addendum


EXHIBIT C
CONSULTANT COST SUMMARY


WHPaafic
5/1/2018


WHPACIF1C PROJECT TEAM


Principal
8S.OO


6


G


2


2


0


0


0


0


Project
Manager


60.00


32
16
-4


4
8


10
2
2
2
1
1
2


2
2


14
4
4


4


2


12
2


4
4


2


8
! 2_


0


Labor Subtotal


EXPENSES


ITEM
Mileage
Survey Equipment and vehicle
Plots and Reproductions


MANAGEMENT RESERVE


8


QUANTTTY
50
s
1


_2_


2
2


7
4
3


'rnject Engineer
5B.OO


36


4


-32.


4
1


1


2


0


88
40
24
16
e


42
20


.8


12


4


20
8
4


_4


4


12
4
a


Designer
43.00


0


8


8


5
5


346
210
48
64
24


246
150


..se


35


24


120
64
16


_L6_


24


32
B


24


Two person


sun/eycrew


eo.oo


0


56


16
40


0


0


0


0


0


Survey
Office Tech


30.00


0


us


4


s


100
6


0


0


0


0


0


Project
Coordinator


36.00


20
4
ie


0


0


0


0


0


0


Archaeologist


32.00


0


0


12
12


0


0


0


0


Enviro
Specialist


27.00


0


0


5
5


0


0


0


0


TOTAL
HOURS


34


198


24


448


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #D


.


Seattle H
ill R


oad Preservation Project - D
esign Services (G


ina H
ortillos...


Page 55 of 98







EXHIBIT D
City of Mill Creek


Seattle Hill Road Preservation
Project No. 18-PAVE -03


WHPACIFiC
Subconsultants


There are no subconsultants.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 56 of 98







EXHIBIT E
City of Mill Creek


Seattle Hill Road Preservation


Project No. 18-PAVE "03


WHPACIFIC
Key Personnel


Rich Reis, Project Principal


Sam Richard, Project Manager


Jerry Liu, Project Engineer.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 57 of 98







^C:ORDW CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MftWDD/YYYY)


5/10/2018
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTiFICATE HOLDER.


IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).


PRODUCER
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.
111 Veterans Boulevard, Suite 1130
Metairie LA 70005


PHONE
[ (A;C;Mo, Ext): OU^-000-


I ^Sss.wiil!am-Hughs@ajg-com


SACT Wiliiam Hughs


FA^. Noi. 504-888-1299_


INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE


INSURER A :The Gray Insurance Company_


NAIC#


36307
INSURED GRANISL-02
WHPacific, Inc.
P.O. Box 820
Galiiano, LA 70354


INSURER B:Westchester Fire insurance Company 10030
INSURER c:U.S, Speciaity Insurance Company 29599
INSURERD :Lexingtoninsurance Company^ 19437
INSURER E;Evanston insurance Company^ 35378


COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 452876800 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDiTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLiOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.


MSR] —__;_•_•___ _^ """""••" ~~ "fSGCiq'gOBRI
'LTR I ^PE OF IMSURANCE | |NSD I WVD f POLICY NUMBER I (MM/'DD/YVYYl I (MMmD/YYYYl I UMITS


A COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILin'


CLA1MS-MADE | X j OCCUR


Y Y XSGL074326 12/1/2017 12/1/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)


XJ SIR $25.000 MED EXP (Any one pereon)


PERSONAL &ADV INJURY


GEN'L AGGREGATE LiMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE


POLICY | X ( j^ LOG PRODUCTS -COMP/OPAGG


COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ea accident^


$1,000.000


$100,000


$5,000


S 1,000,000


S unlimited


$3,000,000


AUTOMOBILE UABfUTT XSAL075320 12/1/2017 12/1/2018 $ 1.000,000


ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY


BODILY INJURY (Per person)
SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY


BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERtrDAMAGE
(Per accjdent)_


UMBRELLA UAB


EXCESS UAB


DED


OCCUR


CLAIMS-MADE


G46842066001 12/1/2017 12/1/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000


AGGREGATE $10,000,000


RETENTIONS
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTtVE
OFFIGER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
tf yes, describe under
DESCRIPTfON OF OPERATIONS below


XSWC071041 12/1/2017 12/1/2018 PER
_.STATUTE_


OTH--


ER


D E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1.000,000


E.l. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEEl $1.000,000


E.LDiSEASE- POLICY UMtT $1,000.000


Excess Liab
Professionai liability
Polluiion Uabilsty


CXS10460127
013001541
MKLV5ENV1005G8


12/1/2017
5/1/2018
12/15/2017


12/1/2018
5/1/2019
12/15/2019


SEE ATTACHED
See ATTACHED
3eeATTACHED


DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Aciditjonal Remarhs Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)


See Attached...


CERTIFICATE HOLDER


City of Mill Creek
Atln: Rebecca Po!izzotto
15728 Main Street
Miil Creek WA 98012


±


CANCELLATION


SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTiCE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.


AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE


/^/^
ACORD25(2016/03)


© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.


The ACORD name and logo are registered marks ofACORD


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 58 of 98







AGENCY CUST01VIER ID: GRANISL-02
LOG #:


ACORSy ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 2
AGENCY


Arthur J. Galiagher Risk Management Services, Inc.


POLICY NUMBER


CARRIER NAiC CODE


NAMED INSURED
WHPacifjc, inc.
P.O. Box 820
Gafiiano, LA 70354


EFFECTIVE DATE:


ADDITIONAL REMARKS


TH!S ADDITIONAL REfi/IARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: ^5_ FORM TITLE: CERTfFICATE OF LiABiLITY INSURANCE


Named Insured Includes:
WHPacific Diversity Northwest, LLC


ADDENDUM TO CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE:
General Liability
Limits: See 1st Page
Carriers): The Gray Insurance Company
Policy No.; XSGL074326
Forms: General Uabtiity poiacy inciudes the below described terms & conditions
Blanket Waiver of Subrogation (CG 24 04 11 85) when required by written contract.
Blanket AddJtEonai Insured (CGL Form# CG 20 10 11 85} when required by written contract.
Primary Insurance Wording included (CG 20 01 04 13) when required by written contract.
Broad Form Property Damage Liability including Expiosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU).
Premises/Operations
Products/Completed Operations
Contractuai Liability
Sudden and Accidental Pollution Liabiiity
Occurrence Form
Personal Injury
"In Rem" Endorsement
Cross Liability
Severability of Interests Provision
"Action Over" Claims
Independent Contractors coverage for work subiet
Vessel Liability - Watercraft exclusion has been modified by the vessels endorsement on scheduled equipment.
General Aggregate applies per project or equivalent.
Biowout and Cratering
Coverage for non-owned watercraft if required by written contract
Underground Resource and Equipment Coverage
30 day Cancellation to Hoider (Endt. Form # GIC 00 18 01 01) as required by written contract


Auto Liability
Limits: See 1st Page
Carrier(s) The Gray Insurance Company
Policy No. XSAL075320
Forms: Auto Liability policy includes the below described terms and conditions
Blanket Waiver of Subrogation (GIC 0 28 04/98) when required by written contract
Blanket Additional insured (GSC 00 29 04/98) when required by written contract
30 Day Notice of Cancellation to Holder (Endt. Form # GIC 00 18 01 01} as required by written contract


Workers Compensation
Limits: See 1st Page
Camer(s): The Gray Insurance Company
Policy No.: XSWC071041
Forms: Workers Compensation policy indudes the below described terms & conditions.
Blanket Waiver of Subrogation (WC 00 03 13 4/84} if required by written contract.
U.S. Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers Compensation Act Coverage
Outer Continental Sheif Land Act
Jones Act (including Transportation, Wages, Maintenance, and Cure),
Death on the High Seas Act & General Maritime Law.
Maritime Employers Liability Limit: $1,000,000
Voluntary Compensation Endorsement
Other States insurance
Alternate Empioyer/Borrowed Servant Endorsement (WC 00 03 01 4/84)


ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks ofACORD


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 59 of 98







AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: GRANISL-02
LOG #:


AC-CWO" ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2
AGENCY


Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.


POLICY NUMBER


CARRIER NAiC CODE


NAMED INSURED
WHPacific, Inc.
P.O. Box 820
Galliano, LA 70354


EFFECTIVE DATE:


ADDITIONAL REMARKS


THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER; 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE


"In Rem" Endorsement
Gulf of Mexico Territorial Extension
Stop-Gap Coverage-N. Dakota, Ohio, Washington, Wyoming (Form # WC 00 03 03 B 4/92)
30 Day Notice of Cancellation to Holder (Endt. Form # GiC 00 18 01 01) as required by written contract


Professional Liability: Each Claim $10,000,000
Policy Aggregate $10,000,000
Claims Made Policy
Blanket Waiver of Subrogation Form # LX4204 (07-13), pursuant to and subject to the policy terms, definitions, conditions and exclusions
Retention:
Aggregate Seif-lnsured Retention Endorsement #006
Each CSaim Seif-insured Retention: $250,000 Each Claim
Aggregate Seff-insured Retention; $750,000
Maintenance Self-lnsured Retention: $100,000 Each Claim


Contractor's Pollution:
Each CPL Condition: $10,000,000
Aggregate: $10,000,000
S.I.R. CPL (Each Pollution Conditions) $100,000
Bianket Waiver of Subrogation Form #MEEI 2211 05 16
Blanket Additiona! Insured: Form # MEEi 0002 06 12


Excess Liability - 1st Layer
Limits; $10,000,OOOOcc/Agg Excess of $1,000,000 Schedule of Underlying which includes General Liability, Auto Liability, P&i, Employers
Liabiiity, Maritime Employers Liability, Charterer's Legai Liability, Riggers Liability,
Carrie r(s):Westchester Fire Insurance Company- Policy #-G46842066001 -12/1/17 to 12/1/18
Policy is follow form.


Excess Liability - 2nd Layer
Limits: $15,000,000 Occ/Agg Excess of $10,000,000 Scheduled of Underlying which indudes General Liability, Auto Liability, P&l, Employers
Liability, Maritime Employers Liability, Charterer's Lega! Liability, Riggers Liability
Retention: $25,000
Camer(s): U.S. Specialty Insurance Company- Policy # CXS10460127 -12/1/17 to 12/1/18
Policy is follow form.


Ali pursuant to and subject to the policies terms, definitions, conditions and exclusions.


RE: Seattle Hili Road Preservation Project.
City of Mill Creek is included as Additional Insureds as respects General Liability and Automobile Liability policies, pursuant to and subject to
the policy's terms, definitions, conditions and exclusions. The insurance provided in the Genera! Liability policy is primary and any other
insurance shail be excess only, and not contributing.


ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATfON. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 60 of 98







POLICY NUMBER: XSGL074326 COMMBRCIAL GENERAL DABILITy


THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ tT GAREFUll.Y.


ADDITIONAL INSURED -. OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS ~ (FORM B)


This endorsgmenf mo^lfles (nsorance prov?d unflw <he foitowlng;


COMMERCfAL GENeftAt. LfASILITyCOVeRAGEPAftT.


SCHEDULE
Ndmo of Poison or Orgonlzstfon:


When required by written confcraat, any person, firm or orggnlz^blon.


(if no entry appsory above, Information required to comptatfi this endorsoment will be shown In Ihs Declarellons ay
appllceble lo this endursometil,)


WHO 18 AN (NSUR£D (Section tl) fs amsndsd to Inotude 88 an lnsurod (ho perfion or orofintzetlon shown In the
8oh8dul&( bul only wild respect to fleblllly artefng ou( o^ "your work'1 for ihat insured by or for'you.


CO 201011 86 Copyriflhl, IneurBnce Services Office, (no,, •t98<) Page 1of1 0


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 61 of 98







XSGL074326
COMMERCmi OENfiRAL LfAB(L»Ty


THfS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT GAREPULtY.


WAIVER OF TRANSFER RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST
OTHERS


This endoreement rnodIflQs insurance pfovided under Ihe folfowfng;


COMMENGfAL OENEHAl LfABlHTy GOVBRAG6 PART.
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE UABILITr COVERAGE PART


SCHEDUtE


Name of Porson or Orggnlzatlon!


uhsn );flq»ieed by wt"il-fce» contract:; any person, firtrt or organl.iKablon.


(f/ no enlry appesrs above, fnformotton requfrod (o complefe Ihfe flndorsement wfll be shown fn (ha Oocfsf^ttons
as applfoabte to (his enc/orsenwnt,}


We waive any right of raoovery we may havo afipfnsl the person or orgsnfxallon ahowft fn fhe Schedulo becsuse ofpa/ftientB
we make for InjUty or damBge flDsfng out of "your wo/k" done undsr 8 conlffiol wllh thai person or oTQanfzflffDn, The'wetvrtr
epptfss onty (o the person or orgenlzatton shown fn (he ^ohodufa.


CO 24 04 11 06 Copyright, Insurance aewtoss Office. Inc., 1604 0


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 62 of 98







XSGL074326
COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY


CO 26 Ql 04 13


THtS BNDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFUay.


PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY ~
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION


This ondoraemenl modf/tey ffiaurQrttio provided undor tho following;


COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIA81UTY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY OOVERAOG PART


The foKowlno (s added (o the Other Insurencft ^) You have agreed In wlllng In a contract or
Condltfon and supersedRS eny provision to Ihe agreement 'that thfe fnsurenoe woukf'be
contrary primary and would not seok conlrlbuKan


Prbnary And Noncontrtbutory Insyrance from.an^ o<he1' l"8"»'en^ avaKafate to (he
addlHonst Insured.This tnsurenoe fs prfmary fo and wi)l rio( $eek -—.,^..». ...-...^^,


contrlbullon from any other (nsufsnce available
to an Bcktjllonal fnsured under your poffcy
provided (hat;


(^) Tfi9 addflfonat insured (s a Namsd tnaureu
under such other Inauranoo; and


CO 20 01 0413 ® Insurance Services GHfoe, fno., 2012 page i cf i


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 63 of 98







XSGL074326


ENOORSEMENT


fn the event of oanceltetfon by )h& Company THIRTV (30) deys WfWw notfoe wilt bo given to Ihs scheduled
ce/tffloate hotdere. Thlo ftoltoa In no way changas fhe notlaa of OBnoelfatIon (bat (s required to be given to' the
insured by any state law;


Schedule


Any person, organlzallfon or flompany a» requfred by written ooftlmct,


ofoooieom pasoion


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 64 of 98







XSAL075320


BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE


ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION


This endorsement fnodfftes Insurance provfded under the followtnB:


BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE


SCHEDULE


NAME OF PERSON OR ORGANIZATION:


Whsn required by written contract, snypereon, tirm or orsenlzatlon.


WHO IS AN INSURED (Section II) Is amended to Include as en insured Ihs person or
organisation shown In the Schedule as an Insured but only with respect to llabilify arising out of
your operations of "autos".


Contains Matflrlal.
Copyrighl, Ingurance Servfces Offioe, Inc., 1884


GtC 00 28 04/98


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 65 of 98







XSAL075320


BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE


WAIVER OF TRANSFER RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS


This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under fhe foHowing:


BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE


SCHEDULE


NAME OF PERSON OR ORGANIZATION:


When required by wrllten contract, any parson, firm or organfzatfon.


We v/elyo any right of recovery we may have against (he perfion or oroanlzedon shown fn (he
Schadule because of payments we make for Injury or ctgmags arisfng out of Ihe operation of
"eutos" to which this tnsurancB applies. The waiver apptiea onty to tha person or oreanlzslton
shown In the Schedule,


OIC 00 28 04/98 Conlafns MaterfafB.
Copyright. Insurance Services Office, tno., 1984


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 66 of 98







XSAL075320


ermossEMgNT


In the event of cencellallon by the Company THIRTY (30) days written noltce will be given to the scheduled
certificate holdsrs. This notice In no way changes fhe notloe of canceltallon that Is required to be given (o the
Insured by any state tew:


Schedule


Any poreort, orgnnlzatton or company as raqulrod by written contract,


OtC 00 16 0101 Pace 1 of 1


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 67 of 98







XSWC071041


WORKEftS COMPEWSATfON AND EMPLOYEffjS LfABftiry (NSURAMGE POLICY WO 00 03 01
(6<U-e4)


ALTERNATeeMPLOyeR ENDORSBflBNT


Thte efido/somant spp^es only with mspeol te bodlfy fnjufy fo yourempEoyef?? white fn ths coufss of flp&ofa) or
temporory sfnpfoyment by (tie alt^nate fimptoyser fri (hff stete named h (hB ychsdute. Part One (Worker? CompBnsBlton
Inaiwma) 8fit( Part TWo (employera LtabllHy fnsurence) wiJJ eppEy as ((rough (h'B aKemgte smpfoysr
fs insured.


Under Peri Ons (Workers Compynsatfon fnsurence) wa wiif refmbureo ths oftomate empioygr for th& faeneflls rs'
qufred by lh& wwhers compertsyUon tew (f wo are not psrmltled to pay (he befieflte dfrecU/ to th? psrsons en-
lilffidlo thorn.


The fngurwice afforded by Ihls encfor8eiTt&nt Is nol fntendad to satisfy liiB sfiennRte ampto^f^s dttty to fiecute
its oNsaitons untter (he waiters compsnasfto/i tow. We wffl not flte ov/dBnoe o/ (hte fnsimioe en behaffof'llio aHitfnste
emptoyarwilheny government egsnoy.


We wffl nol esk any other tnswef of (ho BKewste ewployflf (o slisre wllh u$ a toss covered by thfs endorsBmant,


Premtum will be cherfied for your Bmpfoyaas while fn (he COUPSO of spacfat 01' tamporofy emptoywenl ty th9
aftefTifitefiftiptoysr.


Thappll<y may ba csncered ficconrffngto ils terms without aendfng notfce (o tha eltemate empfoysr,


Part Four (Ybur Dultes If i^ury Occurs) sppltes to you end Ihe elfemafe empfoyer. The flftomate empto^r will
reoogftia? ourriflht to def&nd under Psris One and TWo and our iffiht to (nspsct undsr Pert Six.


Sohsitute


Qtateofepeofelor
ornate Ermrfovsr ?S$.ft XgrQMSQL&nfiMOlSnJ


If required by written contrsot, any atternate emptoyer


WC 00 03 01
(Ed.4.8'1)


Copyrfflltl Wtt3 MaUonal Cwrttfl on OortlponsBltoji tngiiwnce.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 68 of 98







XSWC071041


WORKERS COMPlENS^TtOW AMD RftflPLOyERS tWBfL^Y WSUffANCfi POLWV WO 00 03 1$
?d. W}


IWOTR OF OUR OTHT TO R^COV6R PROM OThERS EMDORSgMENT


W& hove (h» rioht (o reoover our paymenls from anyon& llabto /or en fnjufy ooyerfld by this poltoy, We w)fl nol en'
force our right against (he pBrfion or oroanfeeEton nfiftted in the SchBdute. (Thfe ogfeemenl ipplte$ onty to (ho
extent thai you pftrform work unfter« wrldfln contftfot (hal raqultes you (o obtgfn Ihfs agreement from us.)'


Thte egraemoni (halt not ojserate dfrecfly or fndifeolty to bangflt eny Oft& pot narrnid fn Iho Schsdute.


Soheduta


If required by wrHten conlract, any person, ffrm or organteotlon.


•WC 00 03 ^3
(Ed. 4-84}


Conyfloht 1SU3 NolttHial Coundl on Compansallon Innu/AfiWi


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 69 of 98







XSWC071041
ENDORSEMENT


(n the event of oanceHatlon by Ihe Compgny TtifftTy (30) dgys written nollce will be glwn to Iho sohedufed
certlfloeto holdert. Ws noltee In no way changes (he nottas of canoeMatton ibBt !a required to be filwn io lh&
Insured byanysftitefaw:


fichedulo


Any person* oreanteatinn or company as requlrod by written confract,


610 601$ 01 Ot Pflfislofl


AGENDA ITEM #D.


Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services (Gina Hortillos... Page 70 of 98







Date: June 19 2018


ix/n11(:Ti§e1<
WASHINGTON


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of check
numbers 58649 through 58725, and ACH in the amount of$l67.598.55.


A/P Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
05/15/2018 ACH-Union 76 Fleet—Apr $5,303.48
05/25/2018 EFT Debit-Dept of Rev-Sales Tax $1,442.95
05/30/2018 58649-58725 160,852.12


Total $167,598.55


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


1) K4000/.,—
Fin %9Director


Councilmember City Manager


F \DATA\EX1£CUTlVE\WP\FORMS\FlN\Vouch:r Approvall doc


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 71 of 98







RptBatchSumViewForm V Page 1 of 1


— Report Date: 05/14/2015


City of Mill Creek Report Time: 12:30:32 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill 01 Effective Date: Q’
ACH ID: 2911225895 Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: 76


Batch Status: In Process Created By: SANKOTTKE


Released By:


Name ID Amount D/C Bank ID Account # 0 Trace #_
.0


__ ..__.__ _.__: T 95
_.._..


0201-00-r 1059153
071000288 4539508 C


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $5,303.48 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount . Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $5,303.48 1


Prenotes $0.00
'


0


https2//cpo—ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewformjsp?source=BATCHSU...5/14/2018


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 72 of 98







My DOR


Business Licensing and Taxes


Return Payment


Home


BkReturn Payment


Tm”
Excuse Tax


Apr-30


Contact us


D9-pan=n‘.r.=:*,‘.t?


Re


Excise Return for 600698-011 - 4/30/2018 Apr-30-2018


Ff;-_Applies To


Apr-302018


View SupporLID


Page 1 of 2


MyDOR
Welcome. Sandra Kotlke Settings Help Log Out


Return Payment


History


1,442.95 Souroe -
Posted : May-25-2018


Received —


vowemdby


SECUTEACCCSS
Washington».


Access other State Agencies


VourPr>vacy 1mass Agreemnnl


5/3]/2018


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 73 of 98







Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date


User: lodicg
Printed: 6/15/2018 8:08 AM CITY OF ‘


N


M' ll’C/yk
W A S H I N G T O N


Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount


lnvoiee No Description Reference


58649 91lSUPPL 911 Supply Inc 05/30/2018
IN-12405 50-MC Gold Cloth Badge 218.04


IN-12465 Body Annor, APEX2 Carrier-S White 96931


Total for Check Number 58649: 0.00 1,187.35


58650 ADPLLC ADP, LLC 05/30/2018


514171418 ADP Payroll Services 04/30 & HCM Suite 05/07 1,192.75


514998427 ADP Payroll Services 05/15 39730


Total for Check Number 58650: 0.00 1,590.05


58651 AGR11 AGRII Party & Events 05/30/2018


1693 20x20 Tent & 10x20 Sidcwa|l~Memoria1 Day C: 364.32


1693a Labor Costs—Stugc& Tent Set-Up-Memorial Da) 331.20


Total for Check Number 58651: 0.00 695.52


58652 ALEXPRCO Alexander Printing Company Inc 05/30/2018


55366 500-3 Part NCR Notice ol‘Exc1usion 243.71


Total for Check Number 58652: 000 243.71


58653 AMTESTIN Am Test, Inc 05/30/2018


104718 5-Fcca1Co1il'ormAnalysis 125.00


Total for Check Number 58653: 0.00 125.00


58654 BANKCARE Bank 0fAmerica 05/30/2018


1 Refund, Fcleu CDO Commando Cutter -62.42


10 MyBui1dingPennn.cotn Monthly Fee 59.95


11 Dinner 04/18 NPELRA Training-C Millcr 33.85


12 Dinner 04/19 NPELRA Training-C Miller 16.37


13 Lodging 04/14-04/19 NPELRA Training-C Mill: 1,749.70


14 Breakfast04/19 NPELRA Training-C Miller 905


15 Lodging 05/29-06/01 NarcoticsAcademy-N Len 214.69


16 Adding Machine Paper 1191


17 Toothbrush & Tootlipustc-Bagira 17.48


18 Wltclcn 500L Tube Strobe Replacement 132.77


19 Calculator Cartridge-1T Calculator 9,93


2 Sales Tax Adj, Ritc—ln-TheRain Spiral Notebool -0.44


20 Lodging 06/11-06/15 Narcotics Academy-N Len 375.52


21 Lodging 06/18406/22 Narcotics /\cac1cmy—NLen 377.97


22 Lodging 06/04»06/08 Narcotics Academy-N Len 374.29


23 Lodging 05/29-06/01 Narcotics Academy-N Len 150.00


24 Lodging 05/29-06/01 Narcotics Academy-N Len 176.68


25 Mill Creek Swag Items W/ Logo-Giveaway @ E 1,380.00


26 Items Mailed Out From Property Room 51.96


27 l-Opticom Coded Emitter 818.64


28 Sales Tax, Rite-In-Tlte Rain Spiral Notebooks & 19.60


AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (6/15/2018 8:08 AM) Page 1


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 74 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 75 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 76 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 77 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 78 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 79 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 80 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 81 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #E.


Approval of Checks #58649 through #58725 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 82 of 98







Date: June 26 2018


Mi11C17ee1<
WASHINGTON


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City ofMill Creek, recommend approval of the


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
05/25/2018 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $153,915.37
05/25/2018 ACH Wire- FWT & Medicare Taxes $26,087.81
05/25/2018 ACH Wire MEBT—Wilmington Trust $28,010.46
05/25/2018 ACH Wire- ICMA RC- Def. Comp $2,021.11
05/25/2018 ACH Wire- BAC—Flex Spending Acct $1,037.05
06/01/2018 ACH Wire- Assoc. of WA Cities $79,784.06
O6/O8/2018 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $158,032.95
06/08/2018 ACH Wire- FWT & Medicare Taxes $26,896.56
06/O8/2018 ACH Wire MEBT—Wilmington Trust $22,134.17
06/08/2018 ACH Wire- ICMA RC- Def. Comp $2,087.60
06/O8/2018 ACH Wire- BAC—Flex Spending Acct $1,037.05
06/O8/2018 ACH Wire- MCPD Guild Dues $2,040.00


Total $503,084.19


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $503,084.19.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


( QC


Finan irector


Councilmember


G:Financc\\VP\Paymll\Pnymll Voucher Approval doc


City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 83 of 98







A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #F.


Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $503,084.19 (Audit C
om


...
Page 84 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 85 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 86 of 98







AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 87 of 98







ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITIES


MILL CREEK, CITY OF


ACCOUNT SUMMARY ~ contains all changes to this account as of 06/01/2018 02:19:29 PM


FUND: 100 ACCOUNT NUMBER: 186 L


BILL MONTH: 06/2018
COVERAGE MONTH: O6/2018


PAYMENT DUE BY: 06/10/2018
CURRENT BILLING AMOUNT: $80,568.23


PRIOR OVERAGE OR SHORTAGE: $0.00


ADJUSTMENTS: ~$784.17


TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: $79,784.06


100 186 L 062018 0


Fund Account Number Bill Month Amount Paid


100 186 L 06/2018 $ '77 '784.0(.


If you have questions concerning your billing, please Contact the Association of Washington Cities Office at


(800) 562-8981 or (360) 753-4137 or Northwest Administrators, Inc. at (206) 726-3345.


MAIL PAYMENT TO: Ifpayment is made by check, please print a copy of this page and mail it with your payment to the


following address.


ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITIES


PO BOX 84303


SEATTLE, WA 98124-5603


Page 1 of3


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 88 of 98







A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #F.


Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $503,084.19 (Audit C
om


...
Page 89 of 98







Payment Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 06/08/2018 1:09:04 PM CDT


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:UrgentJWire


_
Status:


Transaction Number:


Deblt Account Information


Pending Approval
1868E0830AO70l62


Debit Bank:
_


Debit Account}


Deblt Account Name:
Debit Currency:


Benailclary Details


Beneficiary Name:
Beneficiary Address:


Bene?ciary clty:
Beneficiary Postal Code:


Beneficiary Country:


Payment Details


Credlt Currency:
Credit Amount:


Optional Information


sender's Reference Number:


Addltlonal Routing


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control Information


Input:


Treas Checking
USD


MATRIXTRUST COMPANY
NA
NA /
NA
US - United States of America


USD
22,134.17 /


CITY MILLCREEK


sankottke


Bankof America
MerrillLynch


Template Name: MATRIXIMEBT
Template Code: WILTRUST


Beneflclary Account:—
Beneflclary Bank ID:


JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, NA
1111 POLARIS PKWY
COLUMBUS
US - United States of America


Beneflclary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date: 06/08/2018
/


Beneficiary Information: City of MillCreek n3177e


Receiver Information:


Input Time: 06/08/2018 1:08:52 PM CDT


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 90 of 98







Payment Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy


Run Date: 06/08/2018 1:18:23 PM CDT


Domestic High Value (Wire
Payment Category:Urgeni./Wire


Status
Transaction Number


Debit Account information


Debit Ban k:
Debit Account:


Debit Account Name
Debit Currency:


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name:
Beneficiary Address:


Beneficiary City:
Beneficiary Postal Code:


Beneficiary Country:


Payment Details


Credit Currency:
Credit Amount:


Optional Information


sender's Reference Number:


Additional Routing


)


: Pending Approval
: 1868E17550L63F67


£-
: Treas Checking


USD


/ICMARC
P.O. Box 64553
Baltimore
21264-4553
US - United States of America


USD
2,087.60


/


302029


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control information


: sankoiike


Template Name
Template Code


Beneficiary Account
Beneficiary Bank ID


Bank ofAmerica
MerrillLynch


: ICMA 457 Plan
: ICMA


B
M


MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TR C
ONE MAND T PLAZA.15TH FL
BUFFALO
US — United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date


Beneficiary information


2 06/08/2018 /


: City of MillCreek 302029


Receiver information:


input Time : 06/O8/20181218104 PM CDT


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 91 of 98







RptBatchSumViewForm Page 1 of]


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 06/03/2018


City of MillCreek Report Time: 01:21:32 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill 01 Effective Date: 06I11I2018


ACH ID: 2911225895 Batch Sequence: 1 /
Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Entered Created By: SANKOTTKE


Released By:


Name ID Amount C Bank ID Account # 593‘ Trace #
— —— — IKE


BAC BENEFITADMINc $1.o37.o5 C 0 0 c


/ Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 .037.05 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1,037.05 / 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


] 6/8/2018


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 92 of 98







Payment Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 06/08/2018 1:20:10 PM CDT /
Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire


Status: Pending Approval
Transaction Number


Debit Account information


Debit Bank:
Debit Account:


: 1868E19351963F57


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency:


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name:
Bene?ciary Address:


Beneficiary City:
Bene?ciary Postal Code:


Beneficiary Country:


Payment Details


Credit Currency:
Credit Amount:


Optional lnforrnatlon


sender's Reference Number:


Additional Routing


USD


MillCreek Police Officer Guild
PO Box 13261
MillCreek
98082
US ~ United States of America


USD
2,040.00 /


Police Guild /'


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control information


Input: sankottke


MerrillLynch


Template Name: GUILD DUES
Template Code: GUILD


Beneficiary Accounhm
Beneficiary Bank Di


BANK OF AMERICA.NA
1424 164TH ST SW
LYNNWOOD
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date: 06/08/2018


Beneficiary Information: Police Guild Dues Direct Deposit


Receiver Information:


Input Time: 06/08/2018 1:19:48 PM CDT


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $503,084.19 (Audit Com... Page 93 of 98







 


 
 
 
 


Parks & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes 
April 4, 2018 


 
Members Present: 


Brett Nagle, Vice Chair 
David Chapin  
Tyler Hogan  
Peter Lalic  
Gordon Keene 


 
Not Present: 


Jim Erlewine, Chair  
Vince Cavaleri, Council Representative  
 


Also Present: 
Joni Kirk, Director of Communications and Marketing 
Kristen Rasmussen, Recreation and Tourism Coordinator 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 


Vice Chair Nagle called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Members and staff 
were present as noted above.  


 
II. MINUTES 


Vice Chair Nagle seconded by Member Lalic moved to approve the January 3 and 
March 7, 2018, minutes as presented.  


 
III. OLD BUSINESS  


 
Smoking in parks update 
Director of Communications and Marketing Joni Kirk updated the board that Mr. 
Davern was scheduled to meet with Councilmember Cavaleri to discuss concerns 
about implementing and enforcing the smoking ban, but was unable to do so. 
Members discussed the pros and cons of implementing the ban and if there is a 
need to implement the ban in our parks. Member Keene asked if the City 
received any complaints about smoking in the parks, which may help determine 
which direction the board should take on the ban. Member Hogan recommended 
tabling the issue until the board has a chance discuss the topic with 
Councilmember Cavaleri to address the concerns of implementing the ban.  
 
Egg hunt event recaps 
Recreation and Tourism Coordinator Rasmussen gave updates about the Teen 
Flashlight Egg Hunt event and the Eggstravaganza event. The Teen Flashlight 
Egg Hunt event was well attended with 107 teens from various middle and high 
schools in the community. Volunteers the Light Saber Guild in association with 


AGENDA ITEM #H.


City Manager Parks & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of April 4, 2018 C... Page 94 of 98







P a g e  | 2 


 


the Magic Comic Books business in town center attended the event dressed in 
costume with light sabers.  
 
The Eggstravaganza event had approximately 4,000 people in attendance. The 
Redemption Church rented three bounce houses and offered face-painting at the 
event. Bunny photos, balloon artists, jelly bean guessing and coloring activities 
were available for the participants. Volunteers from Wells Fargo, HomeStreet 
Bank and the Youth Advisory Board helped with various aspects of the event.  
 


IV. NEW BUSINESS 
 
2018 Goal Setting 
Member Lalic suggested having available walking/running maps with routes 
marked with mileage. He also recommended exercise stations with pullup bars 
along the North Creek Trail or in the City parks. He also suggested adding mobile 
checker or chess boards to be available for the community. Director Kirk 
mentioned the possibility of partnering with the Art and Beautification Board or 
implementing these ideas at the East Gateway Urban Village. 
 
Member Keene recommended completing Cougar Phase II as a goal for the City. 
He stated the benefits of clearing out the brush and building a trail would benefit 
the neighborhood and the students from Mill Creek Elementary. Member Hogan 
added to this idea of incorporating the bench donation or an exercise station at 
Cougar Park.  
 
Director Kirk updated the members about East Gateway Urban Village. The City 
is working with developers on an application for the parcel of land by 43rd 
Avenue SE. One idea of interest is trails to connect parks and create ecotourism 
opportunities such as birding. Members expressed interest in a boardwalk idea 
for this project. Director Kirk also mentioned that staff will present an idea to 
Council about conducting a feasibility study for the Dobson and Remillard 
properties to coincide with the vision of a recreation corridor. 
 


V. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
City staff will look into park tour dates for June.  
 


VI. ADJOURNMENT 
Member Hogan moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:30 p.m., seconded by 
Member Chapin. The motion passed unanimously. The next meeting is scheduled 
for May 2, 2018, at 5 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers.  
 


AGENDA ITEM #H.


City Manager Parks & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of April 4, 2018 C... Page 95 of 98







P a g e  | 3 


 


Submitted by: 
 
         
 Kristen Rasmussen, Recreation and Tourism Coordinator 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM #H.


City Manager Parks & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of April 4, 2018 C... Page 96 of 98







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: June 15, 2018 
 


 


June 26, 2018 


 Meeting Cancelled  


 


 


July 3, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due June 19) 


 Milestone Anniversaries (May)  


 Park Fund Analysis  


 Code Revision - Repeal of Board of 


Appeals/Adjustment 


 Administrative approval of long plats 


 


 


July 10, 2018 


(Agenda Summary due June 26) 


 Work Session:  


o HR Policies – Chapter 6 (Leave)  


 Presentation:  


o EGUV Development Agreement 


o Tourism Bureau Annual Report 


 


 


MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


    1  2  3  4  5  


       


6  7  8  9  10  11  12  


       


13  14  15  16  17  18  19  


       


20  21  22  23  24  25  26  


       


27  28  29  30  31      


       


JUNE 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24  25  26  27  28  29  30  


       


JULY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


1  2  3  4  5  6  7  


       


8  9  10  11  12  13  14  


       


15  16  17  18  19  20  21  


       


22  23  24  25  26  27  28  


       


29  30  31  27  28  29  30  


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #H.


City Manager Parks & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of April 4, 2018 C... Page 97 of 98







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Work in Progress – Upcoming Agenda Items 


 Personnel Policies and Procedures 


 Budget Calendar 


o CIP Policies 


o Financial Policies 


 Party in the Parks 


 WRIA 8 ILA 


 Beaver Management Plan 


 Exploration Park 


o Bid Award 


o Schedule 


o Communications Plan 


o Snohomish County ILA 


 Freedom Field 


o Design Consultant Contract  


o RCO Grant  


o Snohomish County Grant  


 Presentation: Sports Tourism Feasibility Study 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Parking Codes 


 Business signs  


 MCCA storm water discussions  


 Sports Fields 


 Repair Issues 


 Utility Project Management  


 Review of Criminal Justice Costs/Alternatives 


 Status update on County’s SHR project 


 128
th


 St as an ST3 Station 


 Issues re: no parking on sidewalks 


 Development Projects in Progress  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  


 Resort Fees  


 Partnerships with Everett School District  


 Development code change to allow 


redevelopment along Mill Creek Blvd/North 


Creek   


 Council Chambers Configuration 


 Adoption of business license ordinance – 


deadline 1/1/19 


 


AUGUST 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


SEPTEMBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


            1  


       


2  3  4  5  6  7  8  


       


9  10  11  12  13  14  15  


       


16  17  18  19  20  21  22  


       


23 30 24  25  26  27  28  29  


       


OCTOBER 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28 30 29  30  31        


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #H.


City Manager Parks & Recreation Board Meeting Minutes of April 4, 2018 C... Page 98 of 98





		Agenda

		C. Mill Creek Sports Park Replacement Project - Design Services

		D. Seattle Hill Road Preservation Project - Design Services

		E. Check Vouchers

		F. Payroll Vouchers

		H. Parks and Rec Meeting Minutes of 4-4-18

		H. Council Planning Schedule - Council edition




